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Financial Statement Highlights

Financial Statement Highlights

Fiscal year 2014 financial statement performance metrics 
indicated very good results for the University of Rochester 
and its related entities. Total net assets increased $382.8 
million to nearly $3.4 billion as of June 30, 2014. The 
increase to net assets from operations of $133.6 million 
was driven largely by the results of our clinical/patient care 
operations led by our Strong Memorial Hospital division 
as well as positive impacts from some of our recent health 
care affiliations and acquisitions. The increase to net assets 
from non-operating activities of $242.8 million was high-
lighted by an 18.7% rate of return on the University’s long-
term investment pool. Total assets climbed to over $5.5 
billion, with the long-term investment pool surpassing the 
$2 billion mark and the consolidated cash position (includ-
ing operating investments) approaching $800 million.

Selected Financial Trends (dollars in millions)

FY14 FY13 FY12

Consolidated operating revenues $	 3,215 $	 3,041 $	 2,839

Consolidated operating expenses $	 3,081 $	 2,934 $	 2,732

Consolidated investments held for  
long-term purposes $	 2,316 $	 1,934 $	 1,823

Return on long-term investment pool 18.7 % 12.0% 1.8%

Consolidated changes in net assets:

From operating activities $	 134 $	 107 $	 107

From non-operating activities 	 243 	 169 	 (141)

Cumulative effect—aquisitions 	 6 	 48 	 -

Total increase / (decrease) to net assets 	 383 	 324 $	 (34)

Consolidated total net assets $	 3,356 $	 2,973 $	 2,650

Results of Operations
Revenues
Total operating revenue increased 5.7% to $3.2 billion and 
derived mostly from tuition and fees, grants and contracts, 
and hospital and faculty practice revenue. These three cate-
gories comprise 88% of all University revenue sources and 
are the main financial drivers of the institution.

Gross tuition and fee revenue was $421.4 million 
representing an 8.2% increase over last year. Approxi-
mately 61.9% of all tuition/fee revenues were generated 
in the School of Arts, Sciences and Engineering (includ-
ing The College) and reflective of both rate increases and 
higher student enrollments. Composite financial aid rates 
were 42.2% and 41.7% for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

Total grants and contracts revenue decreased by 13.2% 
over the prior year to $347.8 million. Government-spon-
sored awards account for over 76.5% of all University 
grants and contracts. Funding from the federal govern-
ment was $266.1 million or 13.8% less as compared to last 
year, with the Department of Health and Human Services 
accounting for approximately half of all federal sources. 
New York State funding decreased 25.6% to $20.9 million. 
Aggregate research expenditures were down 8.2% from 
last year with decreases in our Medical Center of 8.3%, the 
Laboratory for Laser Energetics of 8.6%, and the School of 
Arts, Sciences and Engineering of 8.2%.

Hospital and faculty practice revenue represent about 
70.0% of total consolidated revenue sources. The 8.2% 
increase over last year was generated from the combined 
clinical operations of Strong Memorial Hospital ($1.34 
billion), the University of Rochester Medical Faculty Group 
($401.6 million), Highland Hospital ($294.7 million), 
and F.F. Thompson Health System ($127.5 million). The 
main drivers of growth over the prior year were increased 
outpatient volumes at the acute care hospitals and related 
professional component fees. 

Gifts and pledges were approximately $25.2 million or 
31.0% higher than last fiscal year. This total includes gifts of 
$10 million in support of the Institute for Data Science, $10 
million in support of Strong Memorial Hospital operations, 
and $5 million in support of the Warner School operations.
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Revenues by Operating Division

Expense by Natural Classification

Revenues by Source

Expense by Functional Classification
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Expenses
Operating expenses increased by 5.0% to $3.08 billion 
for the year ended June 30, 2014. After normalizing the 
partial year effects of FY 2013 acquisitions on FY 2014 full 
year operations, operating expenses increased by $109.7 
million, or 3.9%. By example, the University acquired FFT 
on August 31, 2012 which impacted the FY 2013 consol-
idated financial statements for only 10 months of operat-
ing expenses. FY 2014 has full 12 months included in the 
consolidated financial statements. For comparability, after 
normalizing the partial year effects on FY 2013 compared 
to full year FY 2014, total expenses increased by 3.9%.

Compensation (salaries and fringe benefits expenses), 
which represents 64.6% of total expenses, was approxi-
mately $2.0 billion and increased 5.0% over last year as 
a result of the University’s 2% wage and salary program 
increase, growth in consolidated employee headcount of 
1.8%, and full year effects of last year acquisitions. For 
comparability, after normalizing the partial year effects of 
FY 2013 acquisitions on FY 2014 full year operations, com-
pensation expenses increased by 4.1%. 

Over 84.1% of total supplies expense is comprised of 
hospital medical/surgical supplies and other consumables. 
Total supplies expense increased by 10.1% to $411.9 mil-
lion largely due to higher patient volumes at Strong Memo-
rial Hospital and full year effect on supplies expense from 
last year’s acquisitions. 

Major components of business and professional expenses 
are telecommunications, medical malpractice insurance, 
travel, and consulting. The decrease in total business and 
professional expenses was 2.3%, mainly due to favorable 
professional liability insurance premiums, insurance recov-
ery of misappropriated funds, and lower telecommunication 
expenses. The decreases were offset by higher consultant fees 
mainly for acquisitions and start-ups in our Medical Center. 

Other expense increased 6.6% to $74.7 million primar-
ily due to an increase in provision for doubtful accounts 
year over year, mostly for Strong Memorial Hospital and 
Highland Hospital due to higher self pay balances.

Related entities and affiliates
The combined operating activities of the related and af-
filiate organizations represent about 17.1% of total con-
solidated operating revenues and approximately 7.8% of 
total consolidated net assets. Within the affiliated group, 
Highland Hospital (and subsidiaries) generated operating 
revenues of $355.8 million followed by F.F. Thompson 
Health System with $134.9 million and Strong Home Care 
Group with $51.4 million.
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Financial Condition
Assets
Total assets increased by 12.9% from fiscal year 2013 to 
$5.54 billion at June 30, 2014.

The University’s consolidated cash position (consisting 
of cash and cash equivalents and operating investments) 
increased by $113.1 million to $776.4 million. This increase 
was attributable to the FY 2014 operating results and reim-
bursements of prior year capital expenditures from unspent 
bond proceeds. Offsetting these increases were payouts 
made during the year to medical residents for the FICA tax 
refund claims collected in prior years.

Accounts receivable increased by $33.4 million primar-
ily due to increases in patient accounts receivable at Strong 
Memorial Hospital ($26 million). Higher patient care 
revenue during fiscal year 2014, combined with temporary 
delays in claims processing for some commercial payors 
around fiscal year end, were the underlying reasons for the 
increase.

Long-term investments increased by $382.0 million to 
$2.32 billion at June 30, 2014. The University’s long-term 
investment pool (comprised primarily of the endowment) 
reported an annual return of positive 18.7% compared to a 
positive 12.0% last year. Detailed information regarding the 
University’s endowment may be found on the University 
of Rochester Endowment Web page, www.rochester.edu/
endowment/report_2014.html.

Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated 
depreciation) increased to $1.81 billion with capital spend-
ing of $274.2 million for the year. Expenditures to highlight 
included in this year’s spending total were $48.1 million for 
construction of Golisano Children’s Hospital, $7.4 million 
for the Wilmot Cancer Center, and $89.3 million for equip-
ment and library acquisitions.
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Liabilities
Total liabilities were approximately $2.18 billion, up 12.8% 
from last fiscal year. The major changes in year-over-year 
comparisons were noted in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses, post-employment/retirement obligations and 
long-term debt.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased by 
$8.9 million due primarily to a payment of the FICA tax 
refunds due to medical residents ($33.5 million) offset by 
increased trade and construction accounts payable ($10.4 
million) and higher year-end payroll and vacation accruals 
($10.9 million).

Accrued pension, post-retirement and post-employ-
ment obligations increased $26.3 million to $402.2 mil-
lion as of June 30, 2014. The major components included 
increases in contributions and market values of the Univer-
sity’s 457(b) and 457(f) retirement plans ($22.6 million). 
Additionally, the actuarially determined liabilities for the 
University’s post retirement plan increased $5.0 million due 
to a decrease in the discount rate from 4.75% to 4.00%.

Long-term debt increased by $215.6 million to $1.13 
billion as of June 30, 2014 primarily due to the issuance of 
University Series 2013 bonds in September, 2013. These 
bonds were issued and sold at a premium of $5.1 million 
for $269.6 million. Approximately $22.9 million refinanced 

previous bond issues and $246.8 million provided new 
money for various capital projects. Consolidated debt ser-
vice principal payments of $33.5 million were made on all 
outstanding debt obligations.

Summary
Fiscal year 2014 marked another year of strong operating 
performance and investment performance in our long term 
investment pool. While we are in a very good financial 
position going into FY 2015, continued careful attention 
to the clinical operations, sponsored research funding, 
and capital planning will be needed. In further support to 
accounting and reporting activities, we are replacing the 
University’s legacy general ledger/financial system. Sched-
uled for a January 1, 2015 conversion/cutover date, this ini-
tiative replaces a 35+ year-old mainframe architecture with 
a modern cloud based, software-as-a-service system. This 
replacement will shore up financial system architecture and 
accounting infrastructure.

Douglas W. Wylie
Associate Vice President for Financial Operations and  
University Controller
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
University of Rochester

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the University of Rochester (the 
“University”) and its related entities, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 
2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the University of Rochester and its related entities at June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America.

Rochester, New York
October 21, 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As of June 30 (dollars in thousands)

ASSETS 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents  $	 467,619  $	 486,821 

Operating investments, at market  308,741 176,422 

Accounts receivable, net  333,036  299,683 

Inventories, prepaid expenses, and deferred charges 	  64,216  58,993 

Contributions receivable, net  92,498  91,577 

Notes receivable, net  48,730  48,525 

Other assets  16,207  14,355 

Investments held for long-term purposes  2,315,847 1,933,879

Property, plant and equipment, net  1,814,641  1,729,770 

Interest in net assets of foundations  17,749  14,647 

Investments in perpetual trusts held by others 	  57,526  	 51,260 

Total assets  $	 5,536,810  $	 4,905,932 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2014 2013

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $	 399,286  $	 408,232 

Advanced receipt of sponsored research revenues  24,927  19,440 

Deferred revenue  62,136  62,623 

Third-party settlements payable, net  122,623  116,623 

Accrued pension, post-retirement, and post-employment  402,166  375,907 

Long-term debt  1,126,265  910,684 

Asset retirement obligation  27,241  22,876 

Refundable U.S. Government grants for student loans 	  16,187 	 16,386 

Total liabilities  2,180,831  1,932,771 

Net Assets:

Unrestricted  2,188,658  1,976,574 

Temporarily restricted  703,531  584,307 

Permanently restricted 	  463,790 	  412,280 

Total net assets 	  3,355,979 	 2,973,161 

Total liabilities and net assets  $	 5,536,810 $	 4,905,932 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2014 (dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Tuition and fees  $	 421,397  $	 -  $	 -  $	 421,397 

Less: scholarships and fellowships  	 (177,904) 	 - 	  -  	 (177,904)

Net tuition and fees  243,493 	  - 	  -  243,493 

Grants and contracts  347,768 	 - 	 -  347,768 

Gifts and pledges  41,314  24,871 	  40,467  106,652 

Hospital and faculty practice patient care activities  2,249,400 	  - 	  -  2,249,400 

Auxiliary enterprises  96,828 	  - 	  -  96,828 

Interest income and appreciation of operating investments  15,539 	  - 	  -  15,539 

Educational activities  22,365 	  - 	  -  22,365 

Royalty income  26,025 	  - 	  -  26,025 

Other sources  20,899  55 	  -  20,954 

Long-term investment income and gains allocated to operations  85,729 	  -  	 -  85,729 

Net assets released from restriction 	  56,857 	  (56,857) 	  - 	  - 

Total operating revenues 	  3,206,217 	  (31,931) 	  40,467 	  3,214,753 

OPERATING EXPENSES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Salaries and wages  1,545,092  	 -  	 -  1,545,092 

Fringe benefits 	  444,600  	 -  	 - 	  444,600 

Total compensation  1,989,692  	 -  	 -  1,989,692 

Supplies  411,931  	 -  	 -  411,931 

Business and professional  188,276  	 -  	 -  188,276 

Utilities  55,865  	 -  	 -  55,865 

Maintenance and facilities costs  135,096  	 -  	 -  135,096 

Depreciation  187,797  	 -  	 -  187,797 

Interest  37,815  	 -  	 -  37,815 

Other 	  74,650  	 -  	 - 	  74,650 

Total operating expenses 	  3,081,122  	 -  	 - 	  3,081,122 

Change in net assets from operating activities 	  125,095 	  (31,931) 	  40,467 	  133,631 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Long-term investment activities:

Investment income  15,263  6,551  (89)  21,725 

Net appreciation 	  156,237 	  149,629 	  10,735 	  316,601 

Total long-term investment activities  171,500  156,180  10,646  338,326 

Long-term investment income and gains allocated for operations  (85,729)  -  -  (85,729)

Loss on extinguishment of debt  (2,167)  -  -  (2,167)

Other changes, net  (3,076)  109  (600)  (3,567)

Change in valuation of annuities 	  30 	  (5,134) 	  997 	  (4,107)

Change in net assets from non-operating activities 	  80,558 	  151,155 	  11,043 	  242,756 

Change in net assets before cumulative effect of acquisition  205,653  119,224  51,510  376,387 

Cumulative effect of acquisition 	  6,431 	  - 	  - 	  6,431 

Change in net assets  212,084  119,224  51,510  382,818 

Beginning net assets 	  1,976,574 	  584,307 	  412,280 	  2,973,161 

Ending net assets  $	 2,188,658  $	 703,531  $	 463,790  $	 3,355,979 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2013 (dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Tuition and fees  $	 389,344  $	 -  $	 -  $389,344 

Less: scholarships and fellowships 	  (162,473) 	  - 	  - 	  (162,473)

Net tuition and fees  226,871 	  - 	  -  226,871 

Grants and contracts  400,772 	  - 	  -  400,772 

Gifts and pledges  37,428  32,197  11,783  81,408 

Hospital and faculty practice patient care activities  2,078,284 	  - 	  -  2,078,284 

Auxiliary enterprises  91,028 	  - 	  -  91,028 

Interest income and appreciation of operating investments  10,878 	  - 	  -  10,878 

Educational activities  23,943 	  - 	  -  23,943 

Royalty income  24,299 	  - 	  -  24,299 

Other sources  16,286  25 	  -  16,311 

Long-term investment income and gains allocated to operations  86,766 	  - 	  -  86,766 

Net assets released from restriction 	  52,648 	  (51,939) 	  (709) 	  - 

Total operating revenues 	  3,049,203 	  (19,717) 	  11,074 	  3,040,560 

OPERATING EXPENSES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Salaries and wages  1,475,021  	 -  	 -  1,475,021 

Fringe benefits  	 420,403  	 -  	 -  	 420,403 

Total compensation  1,895,424  	 -  	 -  1,895,424 

Supplies  374,058  	 -  	 -  374,058 

Business and professional  192,725  	 -  	 -  192,725 

Utilities  53,192  	 -  	 -  53,192 

Maintenance and facilities costs  130,624  	 -  	 -  130,624 

Depreciation  184,320  	 -  	 -  184,320 

Interest  33,441  	 -  	 -  33,441 

Other  	 70,022  	 -  	 -  	 70,022 

Total operating expenses  	 2,933,806  	 -  	 -  	 2,933,806 

Change in net assets from operating activities  	 115,397  	 (19,717)  	 11,074  	 106,754 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES UNRESTRICTED TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED

PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICTED

TOTAL

Long-term investment activities:

Investment income  15,062  3,249  (126)  18,185 

Net appreciation 	  95,869 	  85,365 	  7,543 	  188,777 

Total long-term investment activities  110,931  88,614  7,417  206,962 

Long-term investment income and gains allocated for operations  (86,766)  	 -  	 -  (86,766)

Loss on extinguishment of debt  (335)  	 -  	 -  (335)

Other changes, net  51,315  711  (66)  51,960 

Change in valuation of annuities  	 - 	  (2,205) 	  (1,155) 	  (3,360)

Change in net assets from non-operating activities 	  75,145 	  87,120 	  6,196 	  168,461 

Change in net assets before cumulative effect of acquisition  190,542  67,403  17,270  275,215 

Cumulative effect of acquisition 	  40,359 	  7,371 	  549 	  48,279 

Change in net assets  230,901  74,774  17,819  323,494 

Beginning net assets 	  1,745,673 	  509,533 	  394,461 	  2,649,667 

Ending net assets  $	 1,976,574  $	 584,307  $	 412,280  $	 2,973,161 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Years Ended June 30 (dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 2014 2013
Change in net assets after cumulative effect of acquisition  $	 382,818  $	 323,494 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense  187,797  184,320 

Net (appreciation) on long-term investment activities  (316,601)  (188,777)

Gifts of property, plant, equipment and other  (3,448)  (3,813)

Bond discount amortization  (1,417)  (1,399)

Loss on the extinguishment of debt  2,167  335 

Provision for bad debts  25,146  20,204 

Loss on disposals of property, plant, and equipment  2,240  4,799 

Cumulative effect of acquisition  (6,431)  (48,279)

Contributions for long-term investments, net  (64,417) (43,330)

(Increases) / decreases in:

Operating investments  (132,319) 13,479

Accounts receivable, net  (58,499)  5,886 

Inventories, prepaid expenses, and deferred charges  (5,694)  (6,980)

Contributions receivable, net  2,539  3,081 

Other assets  (2,461)  (2,749)

Increases / (decreases) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  (10,505)  38,306 

Advanced receipt of sponsored research revenues  5,487  (4,032)

Deferred revenues  (487)  11,848 

Third-party settlements payable, net  6,000  15,634 

Accrued pension, post-retirement, and post-employment 	  26,259 	  (10,565)

Net cash provided by operating activities 	  38,174 	 311,462

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 2014 2013
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment  (261,469)  (242,327)

Purchases of investments  (1,446,052)  (934,858)

Proceeds from the sale of investments  1,365,112  996,409 

(Increase) / decrease in investments in perpetual trusts held by others  (3)  28 

(Increase) in notes receivable, net  (205)  (178)

Cash received in acquisition 	  5,812 	  10,165 

Net cash used in investing activities 	  (336,805) 	  (170,761)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 2014 2013
Net borrowings / (repayments) on lines of credit  54  (434)

Principal repayments of long-term debt  (33,516)  (46,508)

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt  250,964  23,482 

Deferred financing costs  (2,291)  (140)

(Decrease)/increase in refundable U.S. Government grants for student loans  (199)  163 

Contributions for long-term investments, net 	  64,417 	 43,330 

Net cash provided by financing activities 	  279,429 	  19,893 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (19,202)  160,594 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 	  486,821 	  326,227 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $	 467,619  $	 486,821 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for interest on long-term debt  $	 38,254  $	 37,726 

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Increase/(Decrease) in construction related payables  $	 9,237  $	 (4,368)

Assets acquired under capital leases  $	 51  $	 4,287 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant  
Accounting Policies
(a) General
The University of Rochester (the University) is a private 
nonprofit institution of higher education based in Roch-
ester, New York. The University provides education and 
training services, primarily for students at the undergrad-
uate, graduate, and postdoctoral levels. It also performs re-
search, training, and other services under grants, contracts, 
and similar agreements with sponsoring organizations, 
primarily departments and agencies of the United States 
Government; and provides health care services through 
Strong Memorial Hospital, Strong Home Care Group, and 
the various entities included in Strong Partners Health Sys-
tem, Inc. (SPHS), and F.F. Thompson Health System, Inc.

(b) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements in-
clude all of the integrated divisions of the University—Arts, 
Sciences and Engineering (including the Hajim School 
of Engineering and Applied Sciences), Margaret Warner 
Graduate School of Education and Human Development, 
William E. Simon Graduate School of Business Adminis-
tration, Eastman School of Music, Memorial Art Gallery, 
School of Medicine and Dentistry, Strong Memorial Hos-
pital, School of Nursing, Eastman Institute for Oral Health, 
Health Sciences, University of Rochester Medical Faculty 
Group (URMFG), eXtensible Catalog Organization, LLC, 
and Spruce Risk Purchasing Group, LLC. Included also are 
Strong Partners Health System, Inc. (and its affiliates), East-
man Dental Center Foundation, Inc., Strong Home Care 
Group (and its subsidiaries), Crittenden Boulevard Hous-
ing Company, Inc., Excell Partners, Inc., Rochester Bio-
Venture Center, Inc. (including its subsidiaries), High Tech 
Rochester, Inc., UR Investment, LLC, University of Roch-
ester Real Estate Corporation, UR Equity Holdings, Inc., 
the Meliora Real Estate Corporation, F.F. Thompson Health 
System, Inc. (including its subsidiaries), and Accountable 
Health Partners, LLC. All significant interorganizational 
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The University is the sole member of SPHS, which is the 
sole member of Highland Hospital of Rochester (including 
its subsidiaries The Highland Foundation, Inc., Highland 
Facilities Development Corp., and the Medical Adminis-
trative Associates, Inc.); The Highlands Living Center, Inc.; 

Highland Community Development Corporation; and The 
Meadows at Westfall, Inc. Highland Hospital and its sub-
sidiaries have debt outstanding which has been included in 
the University’s consolidated financial statements; however, 
under the terms of the affiliation agreement with SPHS, the 
University has no legal obligation for the debt of Highland 
Hospital and affiliates.

The Eastman Dental Center Foundation, Inc. was 
formed to hold and manage the investment assets of the 
former Eastman Dental Center, which was merged into the 
University during 1998. Income and assets of the Founda-
tion are used to support oral health, education, and re-
search projects at the University.

The University is the sole corporate member of Strong 
Home Care Group, which is the sole member of Visit-
ing Nurse Service of Rochester and Monroe County, Inc. 
(VNS) and Community Care of Rochester. On September 
30, 2013, VNS became the sole member of Finger Lakes 
Visiting Nurse Service, Inc. and Finger Lakes Home Care, 
Inc.  The alignment was accounted for as an acquisition un-
der the Merger and Acquisition guidance for not-for-profit 
entities. As such, the University recorded approximately 
$6,431 in the cumulative effect of acquisition line in the 
consolidated statements of activities as of June 30, 2014.

The University, through SPHS, Strong Memorial Hos-
pital and URMFG, formed a Managed Care Organization 
(MCO) in October 1997 together with two community 
physician organizations: the Highland Physician Organi-
zation and the Rochester Community Physician Organiza-
tion. The MCO has ceased operations related to member 
contracting activities and is in the process of finalizing its 
activities.

The University is the sole corporate member of Critten-
den Boulevard Housing Company, Inc., which was formed 
to provide affordable housing facilities for graduate stu-
dents and staff of the University. 

The University is the sole corporate member of Excell 
Partners, Inc., which was formed to support early stage 
commercial development utilizing technologies created at 
the University of Rochester and other regional colleges and 
universities.

The University is the sole corporate member of Roches-
ter BioVenture Center, Inc. (including its subsidiary Excell 
Technology Ventures, Inc.), which was formed to support 
the development of new businesses utilizing technologies 
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created at the University and other regional colleges and 
universities, through the operation of incubator/research 
facilities in Monroe County, New York.

The University is the sole corporate member of High 
Tech Rochester, Inc., which is a not-for-profit economic 
development organization that promotes the creation and 
growth of technology companies through support services 
and incubation facilities and provides consulting services 
for manufacturers. 

The University is the sole member of University of 
Rochester Investment, LLC, which was formed for the pur-
pose of holding certain University investments.

The University is the sole member of eXtensible Catalog 
Organization, LLC, which was formed to support the char-
itable and educational activities of the University through 
development of open-source library catalog software.

In December 2009, the University entered into a financ-
ing arrangement for the renovation of the Eastman Theatre 
enhanced by qualified investors in the New Markets Tax 
Credit (NMTC) program of the United States Treasury. The 
use of NMTCs is a program of the Community Develop-
ment Financial Institutions Fund, a bureau of the United 
States Treasury. This transaction required the formation of 
a wholly-owned special purpose corporation known as the 
University of Rochester Real Estate Corporation.

The University is the sole stockholder of UR Equity 
Holdings, Inc., a for-profit corporation that was formed for 
the purpose of holding the University’s equity interests in 
startup companies.

The University is the sole corporate member of Meliora 
Real Estate Corporation, which was formed to support 
the charitable activities of the University of Rochester by 
providing financial and operational support to the Univer-
sity through the acquisition, holding and sale of real estate 
donated to the University and affiliates.

The University is the sole corporate member of Spruce 
Risk Purchasing Group, LLC, which was formed for the 
purpose of procuring insurance coverage for physicians 
and other healthcare providers affiliated with the Univer-
sity of Rochester Medical Center.

In August, 2012, the University became the sole corpo-
rate member of F.F. Thompson Health System, Inc. (THS) 
(including its subsidiaries The Frederick Ferris Thompson 
Hospital (FFT Hospital), M.M. Ewing Continuing Care 
Center (CCC), F.F.T. Senior Communities, Inc. (FFTSC), 
FFTH Properties and Services, Inc. (FFTH Properties), and 
The F.F. Thompson Foundation, Inc. (FFTF).  THS remains 
the sole member of FFT Hospital, CCC, FFTSC, and FFTF 
and the sole shareholder of FFTH Properties. The Uni-

versity, THS and THS’s affiliates continue as separate and 
distinct corporations.

Accountable Health Partners, LLC (AHP), a New York 
State limited liability company, was formed in January 
2013, partly in response to the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act of 2010. Through AHP, the mem-
bers hope to harness the collective expertise of physicians 
and hospitals to work with third party payers to provide 
quality comprehensive and cost-effective patient care to the 
Greater Rochester New York community.  The University 
has a controlling financial interest through direct and indi-
rect ownership of a majority voting interest in AHP.

(c) Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the University are 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in confor-
mity with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States of America.

Classification of Net Assets: The University reports its 
net assets and changes therein according to three classi-
fications: permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, 
and unrestricted, based upon the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions.

Permanently restricted—Net assets subject to donor–im-
posed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by 
the University. In accordance with the guidance provided in 
the New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 
Act (NYPMIFA), the University’s Board of Trustees, with 
consideration of the actions, reports, information, advice 
and counsel provided by its duly constituted committees and 
appointed officers of the University, has instructed the Univer-
sity to adopt a methodology designed to avoid spending below 
the historical dollar value of donor-restricted (true) endow-
ment funds, absent explicit donor direction to the contrary. 
As a result, the University classifies as permanently restricted 
net assets the original gift value of true endowments plus any 
subsequent gifts and accumulations made in accordance with 
the directions of the applicable gift instruments. The portion 
of true endowment funds that is not classified as permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net 
assets in accordance with accounting standards.

Temporarily restricted—Net assets subject to donor-im-
posed stipulations that may or will be met either by actions 
of the University and/or the passage of time. Investment 
income and gains and losses on permanently restricted net 
assets are reported as temporarily restricted until appro-
priated for expenditure in accordance with donor-imposed 
stipulations. Under NYPMIFA, the appropriation and 
spending of such income is subject to a standard of pru-
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dence, as more fully discussed under the accounting policy 
note on investments, note 1(i). When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
spending restriction is accomplished, temporarily re-
stricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets 
and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as 
net assets released from restriction.

Unrestricted—Net assets that are not subject to donor- 
imposed stipulations and that are generally available for 
support of the University’s activities with certain limita-
tions, as follows:

•	 Uses of certain unrestricted net assets are commit-
ted through contractual agreements. Such amounts 
primarily consist of required trusteed balances 
under long-term debt agreements and matching 
funds under student loan programs of the federal 
government. In addition, grants and contracts for 
the performances of certain services or functions 
are reported in the unrestricted net asset category. 

•	 Many of the funds, which are unrestricted for 
accounting purposes, carry internal designations to 
specific divisions of the University, and therefore are 
not treated operationally as unrestricted funds.

•	 The Board of Trustees, through voluntary reso-
lutions, has set aside portions of the University’s 
unrestricted net assets to function as endowment, 
for property, plant and equipment purposes, and for 
other specific operating purposes.

Revenues from sources other than contributions are 
generally reported as increases in unrestricted net assets. 
Contributions are reported as increases in the appropriate 
category of net assets, except those contributions whose 
imposed restrictions are met in the same fiscal year they 
are received, are included in unrestricted revenues.

Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net 
assets. Expiration of temporary restrictions recognized 
on net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been 
fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are 
reported as releases from temporarily restricted net assets 
to unrestricted net assets. Temporary restrictions on gifts to 
acquire long-lived assets are considered met in the period 
in which the assets are placed in service.

(d) Income Taxes
The University and the majority of its affiliates are not-for-
profit organizations as described in section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code and are generally exempt from 
income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) 
of the Code.

(e) Operations
The statements of activities present the changes in net 
assets of the University from operating activities and from 
non-operating activities. Operating revenues and expenses 
relate primarily to educational and training programs, 
research activities and hospital and patient care activities 
provided by the University and its related entities.

Utilization of investment income and gains on long-
term investments held for endowment and similar pur-
poses under the University’s total return spending policy, as 
discussed in note 1(i), is considered operating revenue.

Non-operating activities consist primarily of investment 
income and appreciation from long-term investments in 
excess of amounts utilized for operations. Other changes, 
net consists primarily of adjustments in pension, post-re-
tirement, and post-employment obligations based on 
actuarially determined liabilities.

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents and 
Operating Investments
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit 
with financial institutions; short-term investments with 
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase 
and other highly liquid investments, primarily cash man-
agement funds, except that such instruments purchased 
with endowment and annuity and life income assets on 
deposit with trustees are classified as investments.

Operating investments include all other current invest-
ments with original maturities greater than three months 
and are used to support operations. These current invest-
ments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Govern-
ment and other government agencies, and corporate and 
foreign bonds. Included also are internal operating funds 
invested in the University’s long term investment pool how-
ever, they may be liquidated upon demand at any time.

(g) Inventories
Inventories, primarily medical supplies, are valued at the 
lower of cost, which is determined by the first-in, first-out 
method, or market.

(h) Contributions
Contributions, including unconditional promises, or 
pledges, are recognized as revenues in the period received. 
Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. 
Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the date of the gift. Contri-
butions to be received after one year are discounted, at a 



16  |  University of Rochester Financial Statements—2013–2014

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (dollars in thousands)

range of 2% to 5%, to their present value. Amortization of 
the discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue 
and used in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if 
any, on the contributions. Allowance is made for uncollect-
ible contributions based upon management’s judgment and 
analysis of the creditworthiness of the donors, past collec-
tion experience and other relevant factors.

(i) Investments and Spending Policy
The University’s investments are comprised of the assets of 
the University’s endowment and other investments held for 
general operating purposes. The University reports those 
investments at fair value as described further in note 12.

The Board of Trustees interprets NYPMIFA to allow for 
the spending of income and gains on investments of per-
manently restricted net assets in a manner that is prudent, 
considering such factors as the duration and preservation 
of the endowment fund, the purposes of the institution 
and the endowment fund, general economic conditions 
including the potential effect of inflation or deflation, the 
expected total return of the fund, other resources of the 
University, the needs of the University and the fund to 
make distributions and preserve capital, and the Universi-
ty’s investment policy. 

Investment of the University’s net assets held for en-
dowment and similar purposes is based upon a total return 
policy, and the utilization of its endowment resources for 
current operating and capital needs is related to this policy. 
Although NYPMIFA does not preclude the University 
from spending below the original gift value of permanently 
restricted funds, the University’s policy is to spend no more 
than a stated percentage of fair value of its investment 
portfolio over time. Accordingly, during fiscal year 2014, 
the Board of Trustees authorized the use of total return (in-
come and appreciation) from its endowment resources at 
an aggregate rate of 5.9% (5.9% during fiscal year 2013) of 
the average fair value of its consolidated investment portfo-
lio for the most recent five years. To the extent that the total 
return requirement for the current year is not fulfilled by 
interest and dividends, the University utilizes the apprecia-
tion of its endowment net assets for operating purposes. To 
the extent that the total return requirement for the current 
year is exceeded by interest and dividends, the University 
reinvests the excess in its net assets held for endowment.

The University, in compliance with NYPMIFA, notified 
available donors who had established endowments prior 
to September 17, 2010, of the new law, and offered these 
donors the option of requiring the University to maintain 
historical dollar value for their endowment funds. A mi-

nority of donors requested this option; for those who did, 
the University has designed procedures to ensure that the 
University maintains historical dollar value.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, 
such as interest rates, market, economic conditions, world 
affairs, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associ-
ated with certain investment securities, it is possible that 
changes in value could occur in the near term and such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
investments and investment activity of the University.

(j) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost or at 
estimated fair value if acquired by gift, less accumulated 
depreciation and amortization. Buildings used for research 
activities are componentized as site improvements, build-
ings, building services, and fixed equipment. Depreciation 
of research building components is recorded using the 
straight-line method over the useful lives of the compo-
nents ranging from 4 to 50 years. Depreciation of non-re-
search buildings, equipment and library books, and amor-
tization of leasehold and land improvements are computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. Land and museum collections are not 
subject to depreciation. Estimated useful lives for non-re-
search assets are as follows:

YEARS

Building 40

Building and leasehold improvements 20

Land improvements 20

Equipment 4 to 15

Library books 10

The University reports gifts of property, plant, and 
equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit donor 
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. 
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that spec-
ify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other 
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are 
reported as temporarily restricted support. Absent explicit 
donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets 
must be maintained, the University reports expirations of 
donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived 
assets are placed in service.
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(k) Museum Collections
The University capitalizes museum collections. If pur-
chased, collection items are capitalized at cost, and if 
donated, at their appraised or fair value on the accession 
date (the date on which the item is accepted by the Board 
of Trustees). There is no depreciation recorded on collec-
tion items.

(l) Split Interest Agreements and Perpetual 
Trusts
The University’s split interest agreements with donors consist 
primarily of gift annuities, unitrusts, charitable remainder 
annuity trusts, and life income agreements. Assets held under 
these agreements are included in investments held for long-
term purposes and investments in perpetual trusts held by 
others. For fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the fair values for split 
interest agreements assets are $98,408 and $86,034, respec-
tively. Generally, contribution revenues are recognized at the 
dates the agreements are established and liabilities are re-
corded for the present value of the estimated future payments 
to be made to the beneficiaries. The liabilities are adjusted 
during the term of the trusts for changes in the value of the 
assets, accretion of the discount and other changes in the esti-
mates of future benefits. The University is also the beneficiary 
of certain perpetual trusts held and administered by others. 
The present values of the estimated future cash receipts, which 
are measured by the fair value of the assets contributed to the 
trust, are recognized as assets and contribution revenues at the 
dates the trusts are established. The carrying value of the assets 
is adjusted for changes in the fair value of the trust assets for 
both split interest agreements and perpetual trusts.

(m) Refundable U.S. Government Grants for 
Student Loans
Funds provided by the United States Government under the 
Federal Perkins, Nursing and Health Professions Student 
Loan programs are loaned to qualified students and may be 
re-loaned after cash collections. These funds are ultimately 
refundable to the government and are recognized as a liabil-
ity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

(n) Grants and Contracts
Revenue from grants and contracts, primarily for research 
and training programs, is generally recognized as earned, 
that is, as the related costs are incurred under the grant or 
contract agreements. Amounts received in advance are re-
ported as advance receipt of sponsored research revenues.

Grants and contracts awarded to the University are 
subject to audit by the various sponsoring agencies. Indi-

rect costs recovered on grants and contracts are recorded at 
rates established by the University with the federal gov-
ernment, or predetermined by the non-federal sponsor. 
Indirect cost rates for government grants and contracts 
are subject to audit, and subsequent final settlements are 
recorded as current period adjustments. Management be-
lieves the impact of any future settlements to be immaterial 
to the consolidated financial statements.

(o) Benefit Plans
The University provides certain health care and life in-
surance benefits to retired employees and spouses under 
a defined benefit plan. Benefits include basic medical and 
major medical coverage. Certain categories of retirees 
receive dental coverage and group life insurance. Such 
post-retirement benefits are accounted for as a form of 
deferred compensation over the estimated service lives of 
employees.

Post-employment benefits include benefits provided to 
former or inactive employees after employment but before 
retirement. For the University, such benefits include work-
ers’ compensation benefits, short-term disability benefits, 
and benefits provided under various other programs.

(p) Hospital and Faculty Practice Patient 
Care Activities
Strong Memorial Hospital, Highland Hospital, and FFT 
Hospital (collectively, the Hospitals) have agreements 
with third-party payors that provide for payments to the 
Hospitals at amounts different from its established rates. A 
summary of the payment arrangements with major third-
party payors follows:

•	 Medicare 
Under the Medicare program, the Hospitals receive 
reimbursement under a prospective payment sys-
tem (PPS) for inpatient services. Under the hospital 
inpatient PPS, fixed payment amounts per inpatient 
discharge are established based on the patient’s 
assigned diagnosis related group (DRG). When 
the estimated cost of treatment for certain patients 
is higher than the average, providers typically will 
receive additional “outlier” payments. The Hospitals 
also receive reimbursement under a prospective 
payment system for certain medical outpatient 
services, based on service groups, called ambula-
tory payment classifications (APCs). Other outpa-
tient services are based upon a fee schedule and/or 
actual costs. The Hospitals’ Medicare cost reports 
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are subject to audit by the fiscal intermediary. Such 
audits have been done through December 31, 2007 
for Strong Memorial Hospital; December 31, 2008 
for Highland Hospital; and December 31, 2011 for 
FFT Hospital. 

•	 Medicaid and Other Third-Party Payors 
The New York Health Care Reform Act of 1996 
(HCRA), as amended, governs payments to hospi-
tals in New York State (NYS).

Under HCRA, Medicaid, workers compensation, 
and no-fault payors payment rates are promul-
gated by the New York State Department of Health 
(DOH). Fixed payment amounts per inpatient 
discharge are established based on the patient’s 
assigned case mix intensity similar to a Medicare 
DRG. All other third-party payors, principally Blue 
Cross, other private insurance companies, Health 
Maintenance Organizations (HMOs), Preferred 
Provider Organizations (PPOs) and other man-
aged care plans, negotiate payment rates directly 
with the hospitals. Such arrangements vary from 
DRG-based payment systems, to per diems, case 
rates and percentage of billed charges. If such rates 
are not negotiated, then the payors are billed at the 
Hospitals’ established charges. Effective December 
1, 2009, NYS implemented inpatient reimbursement 
reform. The reform updated the data utilized to 
calculate payment rates utilizing All Patient Re-
fined DRGs (APR-DRGs). APR-DRGs used revised 
service intensity weights (SIWs) to adjust each 
APR-DRG for patient acuity. Similar type outpatient 
reforms were implemented effective December 1, 
2008 by connecting outpatient payments to Ambu-
latory Payment Groups (APGs) which use outpa-
tient SIWs based on types of service and resource 
consumption.

In addition, under HCRA, all non-Medicare pay-
ors are required to make surcharge payments for the 
subsidization of indigent care and other health care 
initiatives. The percentage amounts of the surcharge 
vary by payor and apply to a broader array of health 
care services. Also, certain payors are required to 
provide additional funds through surcharges on 
payments to hospitals for inpatient services or 
through voluntary election to pay a covered lives 
assessment directly to the DOH.

Revenue from Excellus Blue Cross and MVP accounted 
for approximately 30% and 5%, respectively, of the Hos-

pitals’ net patient service revenue for the year ended June 
30, 2014, and 31% and 5%, respectively, for the year ended 
June 30, 2013.

Revenue from Medicare and Medicaid programs, in-
cluding Medicare Advantage and Medicaid Managed Care 
plans, accounted for approximately 36% and 17%, respec-
tively, of the Hospitals’ net patient revenue for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014, and 35% and 16%, respectively, 
for the year ended June 30, 2013. Laws and regulation gov-
erning the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely 
complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there 
is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates 
will change by material amounts in the near term. The 
Hospitals believe that they are in compliance, in all mate-
rial respects, with all applicable laws and regulations and 
are not aware of any pending or threatened investigations 
involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. Compliance 
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future 
government review and interpretation. Non-compliance 
with such laws and regulations could result in repayments 
of amounts improperly reimbursed, substantial monetary 
fines, civil and criminal penalties and exclusion from the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Both federal and NYS regulations provide for certain 
adjustments to current and prior years’ payment rates and 
indigent care pool distributions based on industry-wide 
and hospital-specific data. The Hospitals have established 
estimates based on information presently available of the 
amounts due to or from Medicare, Medicaid, workers 
compensation, and no-fault payors and amounts due from 
the indigent care pool for such adjustments. Those ad-
justments, which can be reasonably estimated, have been 
provided for in the accompanying financial statements. 
The Hospitals have estimated the potential impact of such 
adjustments based on the most recent information avail-
able. However, those which are either (a) without current 
specific regulations to implement such adjustments, or (b) 
are dependent upon certain future events and cannot be 
reasonably estimated, have not been provided for in the 
accompanying financial statements. Management believes 
the amounts recorded in the accompanying financial state-
ments will not be materially affected upon the implemen-
tation of such adjustments. During fiscal years 2014 and 
2013, the Hospitals recognized approximately $3,400 and 
$12,200 of net patient service revenue as a result of changes 
in estimates related to third party settlements. In addition, 
the Hospitals recognized additional third party payables 
of approximately $8,500 and $15,000 related to fiscal years 
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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There are various other proposals at the federal and 
NYS levels relating to Medicare and Medicaid, that could, 
among other things, reduce reimbursement rates, modify 
reimbursement methods or increase managed care pene-
tration. The ultimate outcome of these proposals and other 
market changes cannot presently be determined. 

The University of Rochester Medical Faculty Group 
(URMFG) is an operating division of the University. In 
the year ending June 30, 2014, over 1,122 full-time fac-
ulty in 18 clinical departments and two clinical centers 
participated in patient care at the University of Rochester 
Medical Center. These full-time faculty physicians han-
dled 797,022 outpatient visits in their offices, mostly on 
University-owned or leased premises; and covered 34,609 
hospital admissions, as well as participated in the coverage 
of the emergency department handling over 102,259 visits. 
Payments for these services are derived primarily from 
third-party insurers including Managed Care companies 
(16.10%), Medicare (20.30%), Blue Shield (25.38%), Med-
icaid (13.43%), commercial (10.23%), other (4.86%), and 
self-pay (9.70%).

In addition to providing clinical outpatient care, the 
faculty group’s mission is met by providing education and 
teaching. The faculty supervise and instruct 436 University 
medical students and 816 residents and fellows.

(q) Charity Care and Provision for Bad Debts
As further described in note 17, the University provides 
care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity 
care policy without charge or at amounts less than its estab-
lished rates. Because the Hospitals do not pursue collection 
of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these are 
not reported as revenue or patient accounts receivable.

The University grants credit without collateral to pa-
tients, most of whom are local residents and are insured 
under third-party arrangements. Additions to the allow-
ance for uncollectible accounts are made by means of the 
provision for bad debts. Accounts written off as uncol-
lectible are deducted from the allowance and subsequent 
recoveries are added. The amount of the provision for bad 
debts is based upon management’s assessment of historical 
and expected net collections, business and economic con-
ditions, trends in Federal and State governmental health-
care coverage and other collection indicators.

(r) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues, and expenses during the reporting 
period. Management’s assumptions are primarily related to 
the appropriate discount rate for the purposes of fair value 
calculations, allowances for doubtful accounts, self-insured 
risks, and third-party payor contractual adjustments and 
allowances. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

(s) Investment in Net Assets of Foundations
The University accounts for its interest in the net assets of 
the James P. Wilmot Foundation, Inc. and the Pluta Cancer 
Center Foundation, Inc. in accordance with not-for-profit 
guidance. The guidance establishes standards for transac-
tions in which a donor transfers assets to a not-for-profit 
organization or charitable trust, which then agrees to trans-
fer those assets, the return on investment of those assets, or 
both to a beneficiary specified by the donor. Under the ac-
counting guidance, the University is required to recognize 
the net assets and its share of the change in the net assets of 
the Foundations. The Foundations support cancer research 
and various medical services provided to the community.

(t) Asset Retirement Obligations
The University accounts for asset retirement obligations in 
accordance with asset retirement and environmental obli-
gations guidance. This guidance primarily affects the way 
the University accounts for asbestos-related removal costs. 
The University accrues for asset retirement obligations in 
the period incurred if sufficient information is available to 
reasonably estimate the fair value of the obligation. Over 
time, the liability is accreted to its settlement value. Upon 
settlement of the liability, the University will recognize 
a gain or loss for any difference between the settlement 
amount and liability recorded.

(u) Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities
Derivative instruments related to the University’s long-
term debt are included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses or in accounts receivable, net on the consolidated 
balance sheet. The change in the fair value of the derivative 
instruments is included in the net depreciation/apprecia-
tion in the statements of activities. The University selected 
the combination of variable rate bond issues and interest 
rate swap agreements to obtain fixed rate financing at the 
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lowest available cost at the time of the transactions. The 
University is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonper-
formance by the counterparty to its long-term rate swaps. 
The interest rate swaps do not qualify for cash flow hedge 
accounting.

(v) Reclassification
Certain amounts in previously issued financial statements 
have been reclassified to conform to the current year 
presentation.

(w) New Authoritative Pronouncements
In October 2012, FASB issued Accounting Standards 
Update No. 2012-05, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) 
Not-for-Profit Entities: Classification of the Sale Proceeds 
of Donated Financial Assets in the Statement of Cash 
Flows, which defines the financial reporting for the receipt 
of donated securities in the consolidated statement of cash 
flows. Donated securities with no donor-imposed restric-
tions and converted nearly immediately into cash, should 
be included in the operating section of the statement, while 
donated securities with donor-imposed long-term restric-
tions should be included in the financing section. The 
University has adopted the standard in fiscal year 2014.
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(2) Net Assets
Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June 30:

2014 2013

Designated:

University divisions $	 1,343,299 $	 1,093,638

Highland Hospital and affiliates 46,670 43,044

Eastman Dental Center Foundation 	 27,747 	 25,797

Total designated 1,417,716 1,162,479

Net investment in property, plant, and equipment 662,061 797,188

Undesignated 	 108,881 	 16,907

Total unrestricted net assets $	 2,188,658 $	 1,976,574

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30:

2014 2013

Accumulated appreciation on permanently restricted net assets  subject to board appropriation and/or purpose restrictions $	 538,825 $	 435,309

Interest in net assets of foundations 17,749 14,647

Other gifts and income subject to:

Purpose restrictions 40,787 37,149

Time restrictions:

Contributions receivable 61,983 62,102

Split-interest agreements 	 44,187 	 35,100

Total temporarily restricted net assets $	 703,531 $	 584,307

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30:

2014 2013

Perpetual endowment funds $	 369,033 $	 325,508

Interests in perpetual trusts held by others 57,526 51,260

Split-interest agreements 3,086 2,449

Perpetual loan funds 3,630 3,588

Contributions receivable 	 30,515 	 29,475

Total permanently restricted net assets $	 463,790 $	 412,280
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Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2014:

UNRESTRICTED
TEMPORARILY 

RESTRICTED
PERMANENTLY 

RESTRICTED TOTAL

Donor-restricted funds:

True endowments $	 - $	 537,027 $	 369,033 $	 906,060

Term endowments 	 - 	 1,798 	 - 	 1,798

	 - 538,825 	 369,033 907,858

Funds functioning as endowment (quasi) 	 1,033,785 	 - 	 - 	 1,033, 785

Total endowment funds $	 1,033, 785 $	 538,825 $	 369,033 $	 1,941,643

Rollforward of endowment net assets from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014:

UNRESTRICTED
TEMPORARILY 

RESTRICTED
PERMANENTLY 

RESTRICTED TOTAL

Endowment net assets, July 1, 2013 $	 904,105 $	 435,309 $	 325,508 $	 1,664,922

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees 11,203 9,546 	 - 20,749

Net appreciation 	 153,844 	 132,431 	 3,207 	 289,482

Total investment return 165,047 141,977 3,207 310,231

New gifts and additions 16,049 223 40,197 56,469

Amounts appropriated for expenditure (46,937) (38,792) 	 - (85,729)

Other changes and reclassifications 	 (4,479) 	 108 	 121 	 (4,250)

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2014 $	 1,033,785 $	 538,825 $	 369,033 $	 1,941,643

Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2013:

UNRESTRICTED
TEMPORARILY 

RESTRICTED
PERMANENTLY 

RESTRICTED TOTAL

Donor-restricted funds:

True endowments $	 - $	 434,126 $	 325,508 $	 759,634

Term endowments 	 - 	 1,183 	 - 	 1,183

	 - 435,309 325,508 760,817

Funds functioning as endowment (quasi) 	 904,105 	 - 	 - 	 904,105

Total endowment funds $	 904,105 $	 435,309 $	 325,508 $	 1,664,922

Rollforward of endowment net assets from July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013:

UNRESTRICTED
TEMPORARILY 

RESTRICTED
PERMANENTLY 

RESTRICTED TOTAL

Endowment net assets, July 1, 2012 $	 824,814 $	 387,543 $	 310,209 $	 1,522,566

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees 8,237 6,771 	 - 15,008

Net appreciation 	 88,822 	 76,694 	 - 	 165,516

Total investment return 97,059 83,465 	 - 180,524

New gifts and additions 25,950 896 14,700 41,546

Amounts appropriated for expenditure (51,599) (37,019) 	 - (88,618)

Other changes and reclassifications 	 7,881 	 424 	 599 	 8,904

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2013 $	 904,105 $	 435,309 $	 325,508 $	 1,664,922
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(3) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable at June 30 consist of the following:

2014 2013

Patient care and related activities, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $31,389 and $31,449 $	 186,907 $	 153,835

Federal, state and local governments, foundations and companies, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $1,000 and $731 53,649 53,874

Medical resident FICA refund claim (including interest), net of allowance of $0 and $0 	 - 84

Student receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $3,542 and $3,844 7,210 8,506

Reinsurance recoveries and other 	 85,270 	 83,384

Total accounts receivable $	 333,036 $	   299,683

(4) Contributions
Contributions receivable, net, are summarized as follows at 
June 30:

2014 2013

Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:

Less than one year $	 13,937 $	 7,869

One year to five years 62,914 70,692

More than five years 	 53,969 	 50,669

Subtotal 130,820 129,230

Less unamortized discount and allowance for uncollect-
ible amounts 	 (38,322) 	 (37,653)

Total contributions receivable, net $	 92,498 $	 91,577

At June 30, 2014, the University had also received 
$194,431 in bequest intentions and certain other condi-
tional promises to give. These intentions and conditional 
promises to give are not recognized as assets. If they are 
received, they generally will be restricted for specific pur-
poses stipulated by the donor, primarily endowments for 
faculty support, scholarships or general operating support 
of a particular department or division of the University.

The University expended $40,045 and $38,035 for Uni-
versity relations and development for the years ended June 
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(5) Notes Receivable
Notes receivable, net, are summarized as follows at June 30:

2014

GROSS RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCE NET RECEIVABLE

Federal student 
loans

$	 17,477 $	 904 $	 16,573

Institutional student 
loans 4,281 606 3,675

Other note receiv-
able

	 28,482 	 - 	 28,482

Total $	 50,240 $	 1,510 $	 48,730

2013

GROSS RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCE NET RECEIVABLE

Federal student 
loans

$	 17,081 $	 904 $	 16,177

Institutional student 
loans 4,472 606 3,866

Other note receiv-
able

	 28,482 	 - 	 28,482

Total $	 50,035 $	 1,510 $	 48,525

Student loan programs are funded by donor contribu-
tions, other institutional sources and governmental pro-
grams, primarily the Federal Perkins Loan Program. The 
amounts received from the federal government’s portion 
of the Perkins program are ultimately refundable to the 
federal government and are reported as a liability on the 
University’s consolidated balance sheet as refundable U.S. 
Government grants for student loans.

Credit worthiness is not a factor when granting a 
student a loan from institutional or federal resources; it 
is based on financial need. However, once the loan is in 
repayment status, the University monitors the aging of the 
student loans receivable.

Student loans are often subject to unique restrictions 
and conditions and, therefore, it is not practical to deter-
mine their fair values. The allowance is intended to provide 
for loans, both in repayment status and not yet in repay-
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ment status (borrowers are still in school or in the grace 
period following graduation), that may not be collected.

The other note receivable represents a $28,482 note 
receivable of the University of Rochester Real Estate Cor-
poration (wholly-owned by the University) for a loan to 
the Chase NMTC Eastman Theatre Investment Fund LLC 
(a non-consolidated entity), which matures in December 
2049. The University receives interest only, at 1.0% during 
the first ninety months of the term. For the remainder of 
the term, the note shall bear interest at 1.7%, compounding 
annually, with a minimum of 1.0% principal payable annu-
ally, with all principal and any unpaid interest due on the 
maturity date. Refer to note 8 (p) for further information.

(6) Investments Held for Long-Term 
Purposes
Investments were held for the following long-term pur-
poses at June 30:

2014 2013

Endowment and similar purposes $	 2,038,416 $	 1,750,955

Property, plant, and equipment purposes:

Debt service reserve held by trustees under debt 
agreements

24,162 19,127

Bond proceeds not yet expended 106,173 45,913

Other 	 1,009 	    1,247

Total property, plant, and equipment purposes 131,344 66,287

Other purposes 	 146,087 	    116,637 

Total investments held for long-term purposes $	 2,315,847 $	 1,933,879

For investment purposes, substantially all investments 
held for endowment and similar purposes participate in 
one of several pools, each with its own investment policy 
and objectives. The investment pool assets are owned by 
the separate endowment and similar funds within each 

pool based on the percent ownership of each fund to the 
pool. Income, realized and unrealized gains and losses are 
distributed based on the percent ownership of the pooled 
assets measured at fair value.

The University permits several of its investment man-
agers to utilize forward contracts, currency options and 
futures with the specific authorization of the investment 
committee of the Board of Trustees. However, the Uni-
versity was not directly engaged in any of the above men-
tioned derivative transactions as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

Management does not anticipate that losses, if any, 
resulting from its market or credit risks would materially 
affect the consolidated financial position of the University.

Investment fees were $42,099 and $34,927 for the years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(7) Property, Plant, and Equipment
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the University’s investment 
in property, plant, and equipment is as follows:

2014 2013

Buildings and improvements $	 2,382,543 $	 2,318,762

Land improvements 59,391 58,730

Completed projects under leasehold agreements 18,860 18,094

Equipment owned 1,088,726 1,045,611

Library books 	 170,608 	 160,824

Subtotal 3,720,128 3,602,021

Less accumulated depreciation 	 2,152,641 	 2,016,204

Subtotal 1,567,487 1,585,817

Land 10,792 11,316

Museum collections 33,552 31,592

Construction in progress 	 202,810 	 101,045

Total property, plant, and equipment, net $	 1,814,641 $	 1,729,770
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(8) Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of the University’s long-term indebtedness at June 30:

2014 2013

Obligations under capital leases - 0.00% to 5.44% $	 6,363 $	 8,471

Urban Development Corporation loan (a) 1,167 1,333

Direct Note Obligation - Series 2003, 5.40% to 5.75% (net of unamortized discount of $18 in 2013) (b) - 8,582

Notes payable—Key Bank, 3.55% (c) 1,128 1,311

Notes payable—5.99% - 5

Mortgage payables - 4.55% to 5.04% (d) 4,997 4,980

Bond payable—COMIDA, 10.00% (e) - 532

Bond payable—DASNY Series 1994B, 5.50% (f) 7,665 8,200

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2003A, B, and C, 3.97% (g) 92,530 99,880

Bond payable—OCIDA Series 2003A and B, 3.05% (h) 10,600 11,360

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2004A, 3.00% to 5.25%    (net of unamortized premium of $203 in 2014 and $322 in 2013) (i) 16,793 24,807

Bond payable—COMIDA, 3.13% to 5.45%    (net of unamortized premium of $362 in 2014 and $461 in 2013) (j) 23,072 25,337

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2006A-1 and B-1, 3.92% (k) 104,325 111,180

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2007A-1, A-2, B, and C, 4.00% to 5.00%    (net of unamortized premium of $6,387 in 2014 and  $6,620 in 2013) (l) 230,951 233,553

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2009A, B, C, D, and E, 2.50% to 5.00%    (net of unamortized premium of $1,323 in 2014 and $1,855 in 2013) (m) 84,396 89,699

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2010, 2.00% to 5.20%    (net of unamortized discount of $55 in 2014 and $59 in 2013) (n) 10,239 10,591

Bond payable—OCLDC Series 2010, 4.64% (o) 28,400 27,472

Notes payable—Eastman Theatre Renovation, 0.74% to 2.73% (p) 52,882 53,182

Bond payable—MCIDC Series 2011, 2.00% to 5.00%    (net of unamortized premium of $12,163 in 2014 and $12,939 in 2013) (q) 161,718 167,333

Notes payable—Manufacturers and Traders Trust Bank, 3.28%  (r) 7,554 8,196

Bond payable—DASNY Series 2012, 3.00% (s) 14,320 	 14,680

Bond payable—MCIDC Series 2013A, B, and C, 0.05% to 5.31%    (net of unamortized premium of $4,951 in 2014) (t) 	 267,165 	 -

Total long-term debt $	 1,126,265 $	 910,684

The following is a description of the University’s long-
term debt:

(a) Urban Development Corporation Loan
In March 1992, the New York State Urban Development 
Corporation (UDC) entered into an agreement with the 
University to partially fund the construction of the Univer-
sity’s Center for Optoelectronics and Imaging (COI) with 
a loan of $5,000. The agreement requires the University 
to pay an amount equal to the debt service on the $6,320 
tax-exempt bond issued by which UDC financed the loan 
and the associated reserve funds and costs of issuance. The 
loan is collateralized by a mortgage on the property.

Pursuant to an agreement authorized by statute, the 
State of New York leases the COI from the University for 
the 30 year term of the loan, paying, as rent, an amount 
sufficient to cover the University’s obligations to UDC. 
These rents have been assigned to UDC as further collat-
eral for the loan. The University retains possession of the 

property under a sub-lease from the State at an annual rent 
equivalent to one-thirtieth of the sum of the loan principal 
and the cost of issuance of the UDC bonds.

(b) Direct Note Obligation–The Bank of New 
York
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the 
Bank of New York dated November 25, 2003, the Bank of 
New York issued $8,600 of notes known as the University 
of Rochester Direct Note Obligations, Series 2003. The 
Series 2003 notes were issued to refinance drawings under 
the University’s revolving line of credit with JPMorgan 
Chase Bank. The line of credit had been used to refinance 
indebtedness and certain other mortgages related to East-
man Place. Eastman Place is a facility used partly to house 
activities of the Eastman School of Music.

The Series 2003 notes are general, unsecured obligations 
of the University.
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During fiscal year 2014, all of the outstanding Series 2003 
notes were refinanced under Series 2013C. A loss on extin-
guishment due to debt refinancing of $1,715 was recognized.

(c) Notes Payable—Key Bank
Pursuant to an agreement with a University-related entity 
(F. F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and affiliates) and Key 
Bank N. A., Key Bank, N. A. issued a note payable in the 
amount of $1,520. The related entity is repaying the indebt-
edness in monthly installments, which includes interest at 
3.55%, for certain construction and renovation activities 
for the M. M. Ewing Continuing Care Center, Inc. The note 
matures August 2020.

(d) Mortgage Payables
Pursuant to an agreement with a University-related entity (F. 
F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and affiliates), F. F. Thomp-
son Health System and Canandaigua National Bank have 
entered into various mortgage note payables. The mortgages 
were used to finance certain facilities for F. F. Thompson 
Heath System, Inc. and have varying maturity dates. 

(e) Bond Payable—COMIDA
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the 
County of Monroe Industrial Development Agency (CO-
MIDA) dated January 6, 2004, COMIDA issued a replace-
ment bond in the amount of $698. The 2004 COMIDA 
Replacement bond is for the purchase of property at 10 
Gibbs Street, Rochester, New York which has become part 
of the Eastman School of Music campus. 

During fiscal year 2014, the COMIDA bonds were refi-
nanced under Series 2013C. A loss on extinguishment due 
to bond refinancing of $12 was recognized.

(f) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 1994B 
Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity 
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and Dormitory Author-
ity State of New York (DASNY), $13,000 of Series 1994B 
Revenue Bonds were issued and sold by DASNY. The 
related entity is repaying the indebtedness at a fixed rate of 
5.50%, maturing July 2023.

During fiscal year 2009, the Series 1994B bonds were 
remarketed and converted from a fixed interest rate to a 
variable interest rate determined by the bond agent. The 
terms related to principal repayment did not change. 

The bond issue is collateralized by an interest in certain 
buildings and equipment and an irrevocable direct pay let-
ter of credit held by HSBC Bank for $8,357 which expires 
July 2015.

(g) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2003A, B, 
and C
Pursuant to an agreement with the University and DASNY 
dated October 29, 2003, DASNY issued and sold $164,425 
of bonds known as the University of Rochester Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2003, consisting of $32,550 Series 2003A 
bonds, $49,650 Series 2003B bonds, and $82,225 Series 
2003C bonds. 

Series 2003A bonds were issued to finance (1) an ex-
pansion of the Laboratory for Laser Energetics building to 
accommodate the construction of a federally funded laser 
expansion; (2) renovation of space to house a functional 
MRI; (3) deferred maintenance remediation in various 
buildings; and (4) renovation and information technology 
upgrades in various faculty offices, laboratory space, and 
student residential buildings. A portion of the proceeds 
from Series 2003A also refinanced the remaining portion 
of the University of Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1987.

Series 2003B bonds were issued to finance (1) equip-
ment acquisitions for the Hospital; (2) the expansion of 
an existing garage; and (3) laboratory relocations at the 
Hospital. Series 2003B bonds also refinanced University of 
Rochester Series 1993A bonds and a portion of the Univer-
sity of Rochester Series 1994 bonds.

Series 2003C bonds were issued to finance (1) construc-
tion of an Adult Intensive Care Unit; (2) renovations of the 
Cancer Center; and (3) deferred maintenance, renovations, 
and improvements to faculty offices, laboratory and clinical 
spaces for various departments and areas within the Hos-
pital and School of Medicine and Dentistry. Series 2003C 
also refinanced a portion of the University of Rochester 
Series 1994 bonds.

On July 31, 2003, the University executed interest rate 
swaps with third parties. The University entered into inter-
est rate swap agreements to exchange variable rate debt for 
a fixed rate obligation without the exchange of the under-
lying principal amount. Generally under this agreement, 
the counterparty pays the University a variable interest rate 
equal to 61.50% of one-month LIBOR plus 56 basis points. 
The University will pay the counterparty a fixed interest 
rate of 3.97%. These rates are subject to change based upon 
certain conditions as stated in the swap agreement. The 
contractual relationship under this agreement will last until 
July 1, 2033.

During fiscal year 2009, the Series 2003A, B and C bonds 
were restructured and converted from an auction rate to a 
variable rate as determined by the remarketing agent. The 
terms related to principal repayment did not change. The 
bonds have a corresponding letter of credit available at vary-
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ing financial institutions, individually in amounts totaling 
the outstanding debt service of each bond.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the Uni-
versity to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
general obligations of the University.

The University has individual letters of credit in place 
for DASNY Series 2003A and 2003C that total $66,684 with 
JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., which expire in March 2015. 
Of this total, no amounts were outstanding at June 30, 2014 
and 2013.

The University has a letter of credit in place for DASNY 
Series 2003B in the amount of $24,750 with HSBC Bank, 
N.A which expires in September 2018. Of this total, no 
amounts were outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

(h) Bonds Payable—OCIDA Series 2003A and B
Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity 
(F. F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and affiliates) and 
Ontario County Industrial Development Agency (OCIDA), 
OCIDA issued and sold $4,000 of Series 2003A Variable 
Rate Civic Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds and $12,800 
of Series 2003B Variable Rate Refunding Bonds. 

Series 2003A bonds were used to retire outstanding 
debt that F. F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and affiliates 
owed to the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York 
(DASNY). The Series 2003A bonds matured July 2013.

Series 2003B bonds were used to construct an addition 
to and renovate portions of the F. F. Thompson Hospital for 
the new emergency department and expanded diagnostic 
imaging, surgery, registration, and lobby space.

In October 2008, the related entity executed interest 
rate swaps with third parties. The related entity entered 
into interest rate swap agreements to exchange variable 
rate debt for a fixed rate obligation without the exchange 
of the underlying principal amount. Under the agreement, 
the counterparty pays the related entity a variable interest 
rate equal to 67% of the one-month LIBOR. The related 
entity will pay the counterparty a fixed interest rate of 
3.05%. These rates are subject to change based upon certain 
conditions as stated in the swap agreement. The contractual 
relationship under this agreement will last until July 2018.

The bonds are secured by a direct pay letter of credit 
for $7,469 with Key Bank, N. A. which expires in July 
2015. The related entity entered into a lease agreement 
with OCIDA, which also acts as collateral for payment of 
the bonds. Additional collateral is provided by a guaranty 
agreement under which the related entity is jointly and 
severally responsible for payment of the bonds.

(i) Bonds Payable—Series 2004A
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
DASNY dated August 26, 2004, DASNY issued $45,000 
of bonds known as the University of Rochester Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2004A. The Series 2004A bonds were issued 
at a premium of $603, resulting in proceeds of $45,603 
to finance the construction of a co-generation facility to 
provide supplementary heat and/or electricity to the Uni-
versity and will also provide an addition to the University’s 
Central Utility plant.

A portion of the Series 2004A bonds were refinanced as 
a result of the issuance of Series 2007C during fiscal year 
2007. 

During fiscal year 2014, a portion of the Series 2004A 
bonds were refinanced under Series 2013A. A loss on 
extinguishment due to bond restructuring of $389 was 
recognized.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the Uni-
versity to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
general obligations of the University.

(j) Bonds Payable—COMIDA
Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity 
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and the County of Monroe 
Industrial Development Agency (COMIDA) dated June 23, 
2005, COMIDA issued and sold $20,000 of fixed rate Civic 
Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds and $14,920 of fixed 
rate Civic Facility Revenue Project Bonds. The COMIDA 
Refunding Bonds were issued at a premium of $912 and 
were used to refund a portion of Series 1997A debt. These 
Refunding Bonds are collateralized by amounts in a debt ser-
vice reserve fund. The COMIDA Project Bonds were issued 
at a premium of $362 and were issued to finance (1) the Park 
Ridge Oncology Project; (2) the Bariatric Surgery Project; 
(3) the Orthopedic Operating Room Project; and (4) various 
renovation projects throughout Highland Hospital. These 
bonds are collateralized by the construction projects noted 
above. In addition, Highland Hospital issued $6,135 of direct 
taxable notes on June 23, 2005 to refund the remaining 
portion of Series 1997A and all of Series 1997B debt. These 
notes were issued at a discount of $5 and are collateralized by 
amounts in a debt service reserve fund.

(k) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2006A-1  
and B-1
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
DASNY dated March 16, 2006, DASNY issued and sold 
$111,180 of bonds known as the University of Rochester 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2006, consisting of $94,130 Series 
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2006A-1 bonds and $17,050 Series 2006B-1 bonds. The 
Series 2006A-1 bonds were issued to refinance the Univer-
sity of Rochester Series 1999A bonds and portions of the 
University of Rochester Series 1997A bonds, the University 
of Rochester Series 1998A bonds, and the University of 
Rochester Series 2000A bonds. The Series 2006B-1 bonds 
were issued to refinance portions of the University of Roch-
ester Series 1999B bonds. 

On March 16, 2006, the University executed interest 
rate swaps with a third party. The University entered into 
an interest rate swap agreement to exchange variable rate 
debt for the fixed rate obligation without the exchange of 
the underlying principal amount. Generally under this 
agreement, the counterparty will pay the University a vari-
able interest rate based on the Bond Market Association 
(BMA) Municipal Swap Index. The University will pay the 
counterparty a fixed interest rate of 3.92%. These rates are 
subject to change based upon certain conditions as stated 
in the swap agreement. The contractual relationship under 
this agreement will last until July 1, 2027.

During fiscal year 2009, the Series 2006A-1 and B-1 
bonds were restructured and converted from an auction rate 
to a variable rate as determined by the remarketing agent. 
The terms related to principal repayment did not change. 
The bonds have a corresponding letter of credit available at 
varying financial institutions, individually in amounts total-
ing the outstanding debt service of each bond. 

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the Uni-
versity to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
general obligations of the University. 

The University has individual letters of credit in place 
for DASNY Series 2006A-1 and 2006B-1 that total $113,483 
with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which expire in August 2015. 
The letter of credit has a renewal option that can be ex-
ercised every three years. Of this total, no amounts were 
outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

(l) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2007A-1, A-2, 
B and C
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
DASNY dated February 21, 2007, DASNY issued and sold 
$235,869 of bonds known as the University of Rochester 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007, consisting of $111,210 Series 
2007A-1 bonds, $20,534 Series 2007A-2 bonds, $40,290 
Series 2007B bonds, and $63,835 Series 2007C bonds. The 
Series 2007 bonds were issued at a net premium of $8,207, 
resulting in proceeds of $244,076.

Series 2007A-1 bonds were issued to finance (1) the 
construction of the University’s portion of the James P. Wil-

mot Cancer Center; (2) the acquisition and renovation of a 
new University Data Center; (3) an upgrade to the central 
utilities chilled water capacity and the expansion of its 
infrastructure; (4) the construction of a new animal facility 
and the renovation of existing laboratory space at the Aab 
Cardiovascular Research Institute; (5) the construction or 
renovation of a University Health Service building; and (6) 
various deferred maintenance projects and renovations of 
laboratories, office space and student residential buildings.

Series 2007A-2 bonds were issued to finance (1) the 
renovation of the University Advancement and Alumni 
Center; and (2) the construction of the Robert B. Goergen 
Hall for Biomedical Engineering and Optics.

Series 2007B bonds were issued to finance (1) the con-
struction of Strong Memorial Hospital’s portion of the James 
P. Wilmot Cancer Center; (2) the renovation of the Hospital’s 
surgical adult intensive care and intermediate care units; (3) 
the renovation of the Hospital’s medical behavioral inpatient 
unit; and (4) the purchase of equipment for the Hospital.

Series 2007C bonds were issued to refinance (1) a portion 
of the University of Rochester Series 1998A bonds; and (2) a 
portion of the University of Rochester Series 2004A bonds. 
During fiscal year 2014, a portion of the Series 2007C bonds 
were refinanced under Series 2013C. A loss on extinguish-
ment due to bond refinancing of $140 was recognized.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the Uni-
versity to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
general obligations of the University.

(m) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2009A, B, C, 
D and E
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
DASNY dated July 22, 2009, DASNY issued and sold 
$117,279 of bonds known as the University of Rochester 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, consisting of $54,469 Series 
2009A bonds, $34,460 Series 2009B bonds, $11,135 Series 
2009C bonds, $3,625 Series 2009D bonds, and $13,590 
Series 2009E bonds. The Series 2009 bonds were issued at a 
net premium of $3,463, resulting in proceeds of $120,742.

Series 2009A bonds were issued to finance (1) fire alarm 
replacements, sprinkler installations, and renovations in 
undergraduate halls; (2) renovations to laboratories and 
offices throughout the River Campus and Medical Center; 
(3) renovation of Wilson Commons dining hall; (4) central 
utilities infrastructure improvements for the River Campus 
and Medical Center; (5) various deferred maintenance and 
renovation projects at the Eastman Campus and Medical 
Center; and (6) a portion of the construction of the Saun-
ders Research Building.
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Series 2009B bonds were issued to refinance the remain-
ing outstanding bonds for Series 1997A, Series 1998A, 
and Series 2000A. During fiscal year 2014, a portion of the 
Series 2009B bonds were refinanced under Series 2013C. A 
gain on extinguishment due to bond refinancing of $76 was 
recognized.

Series 2009C bonds were issued to finance the reloca-
tion of certain electrical switchgear within the Medical 
Center.

Series 2009D bonds were issued to refinance the out-
standing bonds for Series 1999B. The bondholders received 
final payment in July 2013 for the Series 2009D bonds.

Series 2009E bonds were issued to finance a portion 
of the construction of the Saunders Research Building. 
During fiscal year 2014, a portion of the Series 2009E 
bonds were refinanced under Series 2013C. A loss on extin-
guishment due to bond refinancing of $50 was recognized.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the Uni-
versity to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
general obligations of the University.

(n) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2010
Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity 
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and DASNY dated June 
25, 2010, DASNY issued and sold $11,000 of bonds known 
as Highland Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 2010. The 
Series 2010 bonds were issued at a net discount of $68, 
resulting in proceeds of $10,932.

Series 2010 bonds were issued to finance the following: 
(1) the creation of a twenty-two bed Neuromedicine Inpa-
tient Unit; and (2) the enhancement and expansion of the 
space, equipment, and technology used for Perioperative 
Services.

(o) Bonds Payable—OCLDC Series 2010
Pursuant to an agreement with a University related
entity (F. F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and Ontario 
County Local Development Corp. (OCLDC)), OCLDC 
issued and sold $29,700 of bonds known as Series 2010 
Revenue Bonds. 

Series 2010 bonds were issued to finance the FFT Hospi-
tal expansion and renovation project. Key Bank and First 
Niagara Bank have agreed to purchase $19,700 and $10,000 
of the bonds, respectively. 

The bond issue is collateralized by an interest in certain 
buildings and a guaranty agreement where the related entity 
is jointly and severally responsible for payment of the bonds.

(p) Notes Payable—Eastman Theatre 
Renovation
In December 2009, the University entered into a financing 
arrangement for the renovation of the Eastman Theatre 
enhanced by qualified investors in the New Markets Tax 
Credit (NMTC) program. This transaction resulted in 
$53,782 in new external consolidated debt and $28,482 in 
new external notes receivable to the University.

Several loans were created through the NMTC financing 
structure. The first is an ordinary bank loan from JPMor-
gan Chase for $15,482 at a cost of LIBOR plus 2.50% for 
a seven-year term. After seven years, this loan is expected 
to be refinanced by tax-exempt bonds and amortized in 
equal payments over thirty years. The remaining loans are 
specialized NMTC notes payable totaling $38,300 at a cost 
of 0.74% for forty years, maturing on December 18, 2049. 
The University is required to pay interest only on these 
promissory notes for the first seven years. The lenders of 
the notes payable are a group of Community Development 
Entities that will receive significant tax credits as a result of 
this loan.

The University loaned $28,482 to an investment fund as 
a part of the setup of the community development entities. 
The external note receivable matures on December 18, 
2049. Refer to note 5 for further information on the exter-
nal notes receivable.

(q) Bonds Payable—MCIDC Series 2011
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation 
(MCIDC) dated September 1, 2011, MCIDC issued and 
sold $161,660 of bonds known as the University of Roch-
ester Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, consisting 
of $122,340 Series 2011A bonds and $39,320 Series 2011B 
bonds. The Series 2011 bonds were issued at a premium of 
$14,088 resulting in proceeds of $175,748.

Series 2011A bonds were issued to finance (1) the renova-
tion of Danforth Dining Center; (2) the construction of the 
Ronald Rettner Hall for Media Arts and Innovation to house 
the University’s digital media center and fabrication lab; (3) 
renovations to laboratories and offices throughout the River 
Campus and Medical Center campuses; (4) various renova-
tions for Fauver Stadium; (5) various deferred maintenance 
and renovation projects at the Eastman School of Music 
and related residential halls; (6) the construction of O’Brien 
Hall to house undergraduate students; (7) the renovation of 
various undergraduate and graduate residential facilities; (8) 
construction of the Raymond F. LeChase Hall to house the 
University’s Warner School of Education; (9) improvements 
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and expansion of the central utilities plant; (10) renovation 
and modernization of the Medical Center storm sewer infra-
structure; and (11) a portion of the James P. Wilmot Cancer 
Center Vertical Expansion improvements. A portion of Se-
ries 2011A was also used to refinance all of the outstanding 
bonds for Series 2001A. During fiscal year 2014, a portion of 
the Series 2011A bonds were refinanced under Series 2013C. 
A gain on extinguishment due to bond refinancing of $63 
was recognized.

Series 2011B bonds were issued to finance (1) a portion 
of the James P. Wilmot Cancer Center Vertical Expansion 
improvements; (2) the relocation of the Bone Marrow 
Transplant Unit; (3) the replacement of the air handler 
equipment within Strong Memorial Hospital; and (4) re-
placement of certain existing angiographic equipment.

The loan agreement and the obligation of the University 
to make payments under the loan agreement are general 
obligations of the University.

(r) Notes Payable—Manufacturers and 
Traders Trust Bank
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the 
Manufacturers and Traders (M & T) Bank dated June 5, 
2012, M & T Bank issued $9,000 of term notes. The note 
was issued to partially finance the purchase of the Lac de 
Ville facility. The University is repaying the indebtedness at 
a fixed rate of 3.28%, maturing April 2026. 

The M & T Bank term notes are general, unsecured 
obligations of the University.

(s) Bonds Payable—DASNY Series 2012
Pursuant to a loan agreement between a University related 
entity (F. F. Thompson Health System, Inc. and affiliates) 
and DASNY dated September 12, 2012, DASNY issued and 
sold $14,680 of bonds known as F.F.T. Senior Communi-
ties, Inc. Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. Series 2012 bonds 
were issued to refinance the remaining outstanding bonds 
for Series 2000B. 

In September 2012, the related entity executed interest 
rate swaps with third parties. The related entity entered into 
interest rate swap agreements to exchange variable rate debt 
for a fixed rate obligation without the exchange of the under-
lying principal amount. Under the agreement, the counter-
party pays the related entity a variable interest rate equal to 
67% of the one-month LIBOR. The related entity will pay the 
counterparty a fixed interest rate of 0.046%. These rates are 
subject to change based upon certain conditions as stated in 
the swap agreement. The contractual relationship under this 
agreement will last until September 2015.

The related entity has a letter of credit in place in the 
amount of $14,849 with HSBC Bank USA, which expires 
in September 2015 at which time the letter is subject to 
annual renewal.

The proceeds from the Series 2012 bonds and all funds 
and accounts established, including the mortgage, gross 
receipts security agreement, and the assignment of rents 
and leases are pledged as security for the payment of the 
principal, sinking fund installments, and interest on the 
bonds. The obligations of the related entity under the loan 
agreement are secured by a mortgage on the property and a 
security interest in the fixtures, furnishings, and equipment 
of the related entity.

(t) Bonds Payable—MCIDC Series 2013
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and 
Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation 
(MCIDC) dated September 19, 2013, MCIDC issued and 
sold $264,490 of bonds known as the University of Roch-
ester Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, consisting of $118,855 
Series 2013A bonds, $74,905 Series 2013B bonds, and 
$70,730 Series 2013C bonds. The Series 2013 bonds were 
issued at a premium of $5,125, resulting in proceeds of 
$269,615.

Series 2013A bonds were issued to finance (1) ren-
ovations and waterproofing of Rush Rhees Library; (2) 
improvements to the Data Center B-Side electrical system; 
(3) renovations to laboratories and offices throughout the 
River Campus and Medical Center campuses; (4) various 
renovations for Fauver Stadium; (5) various deferred main-
tenance and renovation projects at the Eastman School 
of Music and related residential halls; (6) modernization 
of the Laboratory for Laser Energetics consisting of the 
acquisition of new chillers and necessary infrastructure 
upgrades; (7) the renovation of various undergraduate 
and graduate residential facilities; (8) construction of the 
College Town parking garage; (9) improvements to the cen-
tral utilities plant and infrastructure; (10) renovation and 
modernization of the Hospital electrical transformers; (11) 
renovations to the Security Building; (12) renovations to 
the Middle Campus chiller plant and necessary infrastruc-
ture upgrades; (13) construction of the Southside parking 
lot; and (14) modernization of the Eastman Institute of 
Oral Health Prosthodontics Program. A portion of Series 
2013A was also used to refinance a portion of the outstand-
ing bonds for Series 2004A.

Series 2013B bonds were issued to finance (1) construc-
tion of the Golisano Children’s Hospital at Strong; (2) the 
relocation of the Hospital Pharmacy; and (3) the acquisi-
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tion of the former Lakeside Health System (Strong West) 
campus.

Series 2013C bonds were issued to finance (1) the 
purchase of the Women’s Health Center building; (2) 
renovations and expansion of the Second Data Center; 
(3) construction of the new Barnes & Noble bookstore 
located at College Town; (4) construction of office space 
located at College Town; (5) the replacement of the Uni-
versity’s current financial records system; and (6) various 
deferred maintenance and renovation projects at the 
Eastman School of Music and related residential halls. A 
portion of Series 2013C was used to refinance (1) all of 
the outstanding 2003 Direct Note Obligation notes; (2) all 
of the outstanding 2004 COMIDA bonds; (3) a portion of 
the outstanding bonds for Series 2007C; (4) a portion of 
the outstanding bonds for Series 2009B; (5) a portion of 
the outstanding bonds for Series 2009E; and (6) a portion 
of the outstanding bonds for Series 2011A. A portion of 
Series 2013C was used to reimburse the University for all 
or a portion of the amounts paid to bondholders on July 1, 
2013 for amounts owed under Series 2007C, 2009B, 2009A, 
and 2011A.

(u) Required Principal Payments
Required composite principal payments for long-term 
debt, net of unamortized discount or premium, for each of 
the years in the five-year period ending June 30, 2019, and 
thereafter are as follows:

PRINCIPAL 
PORTIONS OF 

LEASE PAYMENTS

PRINCIPAL 
PORTIONS OF 

DEBT

TOTAL

2015 2,068 43,965 46,033

2016 1,606 58,975 60,581

2017 1,126 42,320 43,446

2018 888 48,045 48,933

2019 619 49,824 50,443

Thereafter 	 56 	 876,773 	 876,829

Total $	       6,363 $	           1,119,902 $	        1,126,265

The University incurred $37,815 and $33,441 of in-
terest expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively, net of interest capitalization of $6,250 
and $3,513 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

The University has letter of credit agreements with 
various financial institutions to purchase the University’s 
variable rate demand bonds in the event they cannot be 
remarketed. In the event that the bonds covered by these 

agreements are not remarketable and the agreements are 
not otherwise renewed, the principal amounts (includ-
ing variable rate demand bonds not subject to a liquidity 
facility) would be $164,481, $113,129, $31,904, $28,963, 
$33,738, and $754,050 for the five year period ending June 
30, 2019, and thereafter.

(v) Fair Value of Long-Term Debt
The fair value of the University’s long-term debt is es-
timated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on 
Level 2 valuation inputs, including the University’s current 
borrowing rate for similar debt instruments of comparable 
maturities. Primary inputs into the model that will cause 
the fair value of our debt to fluctuate period-to-period 
include the fixed interest rates, the future interest rates, 
credit risk, and the remaining time to maturity of the debt 
obligations. The fair value of total long term debt, exclud-
ing capital leases, was $1,150,473 and $906,866 at June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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(9) Benefits Plans
(a) Self-insurance Plans—University
The University is self-insured for workers’ compensation. 
Based on estimates provided by actuaries, liabilities for 
asserted and unasserted claims under the workers’ com-
pensation program at June 30, 2014 were discounted by 
2.50% and amounted to $45,665 (2.50% and $48,911 in 
2013). These liabilities are offset by receivables for the 
expected insurance direct payments against these claims 
of $11,449 at June 30, 2014 ($11,245 at June 30, 2013). The 
liabilities are included in accrued pension, post-retirement, 
and post-employment liabilities, and the receivables are 
included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. 
The University has a standby letter of credit with JPMorgan 
Chase Bank to cover potential liabilities under the Univer-
sity’s self-insured workers’ compensation program.

The University is self-insured for health care benefits. 
Based on estimates provided by actuaries, the University’s 
obligation for incurred but not reported claims was $12,996 
and $12,229 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
These amounts are included in accounts payable and ac-
crued expenses on the consolidated balance sheet and have 
not been discounted.

(b) Retirement Plan—University
The University provides defined contribution retirement 
plans to its employees. The University of Rochester’s Re-
tirement Program offers four investment company options 
that are administered by each of the separate investment 
companies. Under these plans, the University made contri-
butions of $80,493 and $76,850 in 2014 and 2013, respec-
tively, which were vested for the benefit of the participants.

(c) Post-retirement Benefit Plan—University
The University’s post-retirement benefit plan includes 
basic medical, major medical, dental coverage, and life 
insurance. Benefit levels differ for current retirees, current 
employees eligible to retire, and current employees not 
eligible to retire.

The University incurred post-retirement plan expense 
of $11,245 and $12,984 for the years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013, respectively, which is recorded in fringe benefits 
expense on the consolidated statement of activities.

Benefit expense for this plan for the years ended June 
30, 2014 and 2013 includes the following components:

2014 2013

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $	 148,483 $	 164,702

Service cost 3,079 3,620

Interest cost 6,844 6,828

Estimated plan participant contributions 2,802 2,330

Actuarial (gain)/loss 3,863 (18,604)

Benefits paid 	 (11,593) 	 (10,393)

Benefit obligation at end of year $	 153,478 $	 148,483

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $	 - $	 -

Employer contributions 8,791 8,063

Participant contributions 2,802 2,330

Benefits paid 	 (11,593) 	 (10,393)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $	 - $	 -

Components of accrued benefit

Funded status $	 (153,478) $	 (148,483)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 22,780 19,230

Unrecognized prior service cost 	 4,723 	 5,732

Accrued benefits $	 (125,975) $	 (123,521)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of

Accrued post-retirement benefit cost $	 (123,521) $	 (118,600)

Net post-retirement benefit expense (11,245) (12,984)

Employer contributions 	 8,791 	 8,063

Accrued benefits $	 (125,975) $	 (123,521)

Amount recorded in unrestricted net assets 	 (27,503) 	 (24,962)

Net amount recognized in unrestricted net 
assets

$	  (153,478) $	 (148,483)

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service cost $	 3,079 $	 3,620

Interest cost 6,844 6,828

Amortization of prior service cost 	 1,009 	 1,010

Amortization of net actuarial loss 	 313 	 1,526

Net periodic benefit cost $	 11,245 $	 12,984

Other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for the period

Net (gain)/loss during period $	 3,863 $	 (18,604)

Amortization recognition 	 (1,321) 	 (2,536)

Total OCI recognized $	 2,542 $	 (21,140)
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The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost 
for the defined benefit plan that will be amortized from 
unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit (income)/
cost in fiscal 2015 are $0.5 and $1.0 million, respectively.

Estimated future contributions, benefit payments, and 
28% prescription subsidy payments are as follows:

ESTIMATED 
CONTRIBUTIONS/ 

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

ESTIMATED 28%  
RX SUBSIDY PAYMENTS

2015 $	 10,081 $	 623

2016 10,546 685

2017 10,960 759

2018 11,236 762

2019 11,355 820

2020 to 2024 56,708 2,759

Benefits are valued based upon the projected unit cost 
method. The weighted average assumptions used at the 
measurement date, July 1, are as follows:

2014 2013

Discount rate for obligation 4.00% 4.75%

Expected return on plan assets N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A

Health care cost trend rate—initial 8.00% 9.00%

Health care cost trend rate—final 4.50% 4.50%

The rate increase in health care costs was assumed to de-
crease to 4.50% in 2020 and to remain at that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant 
effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 
one percentage-point change in the health care cost trend 
rate would have the following effects:

ONE PERCENTAGE 
POINT INCREASE

ONE PERCENTAGE 
POINT DECREASE

Effect on total of service and 
interest cost components

$	 647 $	 (537)

Effect on post-retirement benefit 
obligation

$	 2,308 $	 (2,276)

The Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and 
Modernization Act of 2003 provides for a direct govern-
ment subsidy for employers who continue to offer a retiree 
drug program that is deemed to be actuarially equivalent 
in the government plan. The University qualified for the 
Medicare Part D prescription drug federal subsidy.

Employers are required to recognize the over-funded 
or under-funded status of defined benefit pension and 

post-retirement plans as assets or liabilities in its con-
solidated balance sheet and to recognize changes in that 
funded status in the year in which the changes occur 
through changes in unrestricted net assets. In addition, 
employers are required to measure the funded status of the 
plan as of the consolidated balance sheet date. 

(d) Post-employment Benefits—University
Accrued post-employment benefits of the University 
amounted to $59,962 and $61,930 at June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively.

(e) Self-insurance Plans—Highland 
Hospital and Affiliates
Highland Hospital is self-insured for workers’ compen-
sation claim losses and expenses. A letter of credit in the 
amount of $8,884 is maintained as security for work-
ers compensation claims. Included in accrued pension, 
post-retirement, and post-employment at June 30, 2014 
and 2013 are accruals of approximately $16,100 and 
$15,543, respectively, for specific incidents to the extent 
that they have been asserted or are probable of assertion 
and can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities are offset 
by a receivable for the expected insurance direct payments 
against these claims of $4,164 and $2,852 at June 30, 2014 
and 2013, respectively. This liability has been discounted by 
2.25% and 2.00% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(f) Retirement Plan—Highland Hospital and 
Affiliates
The retirement plan of Highland Hospital covers all 
employees who have completed two years of continuous 
employment. The benefits for this plan are based primarily 
on years of service and employees’ pay near retirement. The 
funding policy is to contribute, annually, an amount con-
sistent with the requirement of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act.

Retirement plan expense of $11,745 and $10,007 was 
incurred for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively, and is recorded in fringe benefits in the 
consolidated statements of activities. In addition, a pen-
sion related benefit other than net periodic pension cost of 
$28,848 and $(10,089) for the years ending December 31, 
2013 and 2012, respectively, was recorded in other changes 
on the consolidated statement of activities. 
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Pension expense for this plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 includes the following 
components:

2013 2012

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $	 176,117 $	 150,596

Service cost 5,926 5,247

Interest cost 7,067 6,899

Actuarial loss (17,063) 18,314

Benefits paid 	 (4,944) 	 (4,939)

Benefit obligation at end of year $	 167,103 $	 176,117

2013 2012

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $	 102,294 $	 87,665

Actual return on plan assets 13,576 10,592

Employer contribution 6,380 9,180

Benefits and expenses paid 	 (5,487) 	 (5,143)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $	 116,763 $	 102,294

2013 2012

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets 
consist of

Accrued benefits $	 (10,217) $	 (4,852)

Amount recognized in unrestricted net assets 	 (40,123) 	 (68,971)

Funded Status $	 (50,340) $	 (73,823)

2013 2012

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service cost $	 5,926 $	 5,247

Interest cost 7,067 6,899

Expected return on plan assets (8,226) (7,310)

Amortization loss 	 6,978 	 5,171

Net periodic benefit cost $	 11,745 $	 10,007

2013 2012

The assumptions used for the plan at the measurement date are as follows:

Discount rate for obligation 4.95% 4.07%

Discount rate for pension expense 4.07% 4.63%

Investment return assumption (regular) 8.00% 8.00%

Future compensation increase rate 3.60% 3.60%

The pension plan funds are allocated to two money 
managers, each with a balanced portfolio. These money 
managers monitor financial market funds and adjust in-
consistent strategy accordingly.

The weighted-average asset allocation for the pen-
sion plan as of December 31, by manager categories is as 
follows:

2013 2012

Asset category

Equity securities 55% 56%

Fixed income securities 39% 39%

Cash and other investments 	 6% 	 5%

Total 	 100% 	 100%

Estimated future benefit payments for the years ending 
December 31:

2014 $	 4,533

2015 5,063

2016 5,792

2017 6,578

2018 7,372

2019 to 2023 	 51,005

Total estimated future payments $	 80,343

Highland Hospital expects to contribute $10,760 to the 
plan in 2014 and contributed $8,770 to the plan in 2013. 

The plan’s asset allocation policy states the assets should 
be allocated as follows:

2013 2012

Asset category

Equity securities 57% 57%

Fixed income securities 38% 38%

Cash and other investments 5% 	 5%

Total 100% 	 100%

In addition, the total equity commitment should not 
exceed 75% of assets. The asset allocation ranges estab-
lished by this investment policy represent a long-term 
perspective, and as such, rapid unanticipated market shifts 
or changes in economic conditions may cause the asset mix 
to fall outside of the policy range. These divergences should 
be of a short-term nature.

Inflows and disbursements should be allocated such that 
the assets are rebalanced toward the target allocation.

The plan assets are invested with an outside trustee for 
the sole benefit of the plan participants. Investments are 
managed to maximize total return while maintaining a 
prudent level of risk. 
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The following assets were recorded at fair value within 
the plan assets of Highland Hospital as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. Fair value for Level 1 is based 
upon quoted market prices. Level 2 may be based on 
quoted prices for similar assets and/or inputs other than 
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

The following assets were recorded at fair value within 
the plan assets of Highland Hospital as of December 31:

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 2013
TOTAL FAIR 

VALUE

Description

Cash $	 988 $	 - $	 - $	 988

Mutual fund—global 
balanced asset

57,204 	 - 	 - 57,204

Mutual fund—multi 
asset

	 - 	 58,571 	 - 	 58,571

Total $	 58,192 $	 58,571 $	 - $	 116,763

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 2012
TOTAL FAIR 

VALUE

Description

Cash $	 94 $	 - $	 - $	 94

Mutual fund—global 
balanced asset

50,829 	 - 	 - 50,829

Mutual fund—multi 
asset

	 - 	 51,371 	 - 	 51,371

Total $	 50,923 $	 51,371 $	 - $	 102,294

(g) Retirement Plan—F.F. Thompson Health 
System, Inc. 
F.F. Thompson Health System, Inc. sponsors a noncontrib-
utory defined benefit pension plan, the Thompson Health 
Pension Plan (the Plan), covering all eligible employees. 
Benefits under the Plan are based on each participant’s 
years of service and compensation, as defined by the Plan 
document. The annual measurement date for the Plan is 
December 31. The funded status of this plan as of Decem-
ber 31, 2013 was $(10,686).

(h) Retirement Plan—Visiting Nurse Service 
of Rochester and Monroe County, Inc. 
VNS has a noncontributory defined benefit cash balance 
pension plan covering many of its employees, past and 
present. This plan was frozen in December 2002. There will 
be no new participants and no new annual contributions for 
existing participants. Accounts for existing participants will 
continue to be credited annually for interest earned. VNS 
will have an ongoing requirement for funding of the plan.

The annual measurement date for the Plan is December 
31. The funded status of this plan as of December 31, 2013 
was $(2,016).

(10) Investment in Captive Insurance 
Company
The Hospital, together with other universities and teaching 
hospitals, has formed a captive insurance company (cap-
tive) to insure the professional liability risks of the share-
holders. The Hospital’s investment in the captive represents 
20% of the voting rights; however, the dissolution provi-
sions of the captive agreement indicate that the Hospital’s 
financial participation (based on percentage of premiums 
paid) is approximately 8% of the financial results of the 
captive. Due to the Hospital’s significant influence in the 
captive, the investment in the captive has been recorded 
under the equity method.

The Hospital’s premiums are based on its professional 
liability experience and a shared risk factor with the other 
participants. Premiums are subject to retrospective adjust-
ment based on, among other things, actual loss experience 
of the Hospital.

The most recent financial information for the captive for 
years ended December 31 is summarized below:

2013 AUDITED 2012 AUDITED

Results of operations

Net earned premiums $	 91,903 $	 165,644

Expenses (155,519) (214,991)

Investment income and realized gains on sales of 
marketable securities 	 84,414 	 63,076

Net income 20,798 13,729

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 	 65,884 	 57,755

Comprehensive income/(loss) 86,682 71,484

Net capital additions from shareholders 	 56,945 	 89,390

Change in shareholders’ equity $	 143,627 $	 160,874

Financial position

Total assets $	 2,956,211 $	 2,768,977

Total liabilities 	 2,382,650 	 2,339,043

Shareholders’ equity $	 573,561 $	 429,934
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(11) Professional Liability Claims
The University’s coverage for professional liability insur-
ance is provided under insurance policies obtained jointly 
with other universities and teaching hospitals. The primary 
layer of coverage, as well as the buffer and self-insured 
layers of excess insurance, were written by MCIC Vermont, 
Inc. (a Risk Retention Group) formed and directed by the 
participating insured institutions. Multiple layers of excess 
insurance were purchased from several different insurance 
companies. The maximum coverage for the Medical Center 
is $221,000 per claim. The per claim coverage amount at 
each of the five participating institutions has been tailored 
to their own experience and exposures.

In fiscal year 2012, the University adopted the principles 
of insurance claim and recovery accounting for profes-
sional liability claims. This required liability claims and any 
anticipated insurance recoveries to be reported on a gross 
basis versus the previous practice of netting the recoveries 
against liability claims. The insurance claims receivable, 
as calculated by the actuaries, was approximately $40,791 
and $45,183 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 
has been included in other accounts receivable as shown 
in note 3. A corresponding increase to the accrued profes-
sional liability cost has been included in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses.

Based on estimates provided by the actuaries retained 
by MCIC Vermont, Inc., the University’s obligations for 
incurred but not reported claims were $29,842 and $31,300 
as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These amounts 
have not been discounted and are included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses on the consolidated balance 
sheet. 
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(12) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following tables present the fair value of the financial instruments recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as of 
June 30:

QUOTED  
MARKET PRICES  

(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT  
OBSERVABLE INPUTS  

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS  

(LEVEL 3)

2014 
TOTAL FAIR  

VALUE

ASSETS

Total cash and cash equivalents $	 - $	 85,327 $	 - $	 85,327

Operating and long term investments:

Cash and cash equivalents 188,928 78,620 	 - 267,548

Debt securities

Asset backed securities 	 - 24,942 	 - 24,942

Bank loans 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -

Bond funds 147,721 	 - 2,213 149,934

Corporate bonds 	 - 38,695 	 - 38,695

Government bonds and securities 	 - 122,694 	 - 122,694

Mortgage backed bonds 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -

Other 5,905 6,864 	 - 12,769

Common, mutual fund, and preferred stock

Common stock 324,880 	 - 200 325,080

Equity exchange traded funds 191 	 - 	 - 191

Mutual funds (domestic) 11,822 56,059 	 - 67,881

Mutual funds (international) 88,207 358,090 	 - 446,297

Real assets 323 	 - 266,976 267,299

Private equity 	 - 	 - 408,615 408,615

Hedge funds 	 - 68,727 362,825 431,552

Other 	 20,568 	 1,973 	 38,550 	 61,091

Total operating and long term investments 788,545 756,664 1,079,379 2,624,588

Interest in net assets of foundations 	 - 	 - 17,749 17,749

Trusts held by others 	 - 	 - 	 57,526 	 57,526

Total assets at fair value $	 788,545 $	 841,991 $	 1,154,654 $	 2,785,190

LIABILITIES

Interest rate swap payable $	 - $	 24,639 $	 - $	 24,639

Total liabilities at fair value $	 - $	 24,639 $	 - $	 24,639
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QUOTED  
MARKET PRICES  

(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT  
OBSERVABLE INPUTS  

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS  

(LEVEL 3)

2013 
TOTAL FAIR  

VALUE

ASSETS

Total cash and cash equivalents $	 - $	 159,457 $	 - $	 159,457

Operating and long term investments:

Cash and cash equivalents 144,303 94,992 	 - 239,295

Debt securities

Asset backed securities 	 - 25,597 	 - 25,597

Bank loans 	 - 36 	 - 36

Bond funds 108,204 	 - 1,990 110,194

Corporate bonds 	 - 24,534 	 - 24,534

Government bonds and securities 	 - 21,052 	 - 21,052

Mortgage backed bonds 	 - 2 	 - 2

Other 6,101 5,328 	 - 11,429

Common, mutual fund, and preferred stock

Common stock 264,313 1 200 264,514

Equity exchange traded funds 156 	 - 	 - 156

Mutual funds (domestic) 7,085 46,667 	 - 53,752

Mutual funds (international) 134,021 198,503 	 - 332,524

Real assets 323 	 - 281,144 281,467

Private equity 	 - 	 - 341,182 341,182

Hedge funds 	 - 58,972 297,439 356,411

Other 	 17,134 	 2,283 	 28,739 	 48,156

Total operating and long term investments 681,640 477,967 950,694 2,110,301

Interest in net assets of foundations 	 - 	 - 14,647 14,647

Trusts held by others 	 - 	 - 	 51,260 	 51,260

Total assets at fair value $	 681,640 $	 637,424 $	 1,016,601 $	 2,335,665

LIABILITIES

Interest rate swap payable $	 - $	 28,006 $	 - $	 28,006

Total liabilities at fair value $	 - $	 28,006 $	 - $	 28,006

The valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value described below may produce a fair 
value calculation that may not be indicative of net realiz-
able value or reflective of future fair values. The University 
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consis-
tent with other market participants. However, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the 
fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

Fair value for Level 1 is based upon quoted market 
prices in active markets. Fair value for Level 2 is based on 
quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in mar-
kets that are not active, and model-based valuation tech-
niques for which all significant assumptions are observable 
in the market or can be corroborated by observable market 
data for substantially the full term of the assets. Inputs are 
obtained from various sources including market partici-
pants, dealers, and brokers. Level 3 consists primarily of 
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the University’s alternative investments (primarily limited 
partnership interests in absolute return, hedge funds, 
private equity, real estate, and natural resource funds) and 
represents the ownership interest in the net asset value 
(NAV) of the respective partnerships. Investments held by 
the partnerships consist of marketable securities as well as 
securities that do not have readily determined fair values. 
The fair values of the securities held by limited partner-
ships that do not have readily observable fair values are 
determined by the general partner and are based on his-
torical cost, appraisals, and/or other estimates that require 
varying degrees of judgment. If no public market exists 
for the investment securities, the fair value is determined 
by the general partner taking into consideration the costs 
of the securities, prices of recent significant placements of 
securities of the same issuer, and subsequent developments 
concerning the companies to which the securities relate.

Interest in net assets of foundations are considered Level 
3 assets as they represent the University’s share of net assets 
as reported by the foundations.

Investments in perpetual trusts held by others are val-
ued at the fair value of the assets contributed to the trusts 
and are considered Level 3 assets. The primary unob-
servable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the 
foundation and perpetual trust assets are the underlying 
securities held by the foundations and trusts. Significant 
fluctuation in the market value of these underlying securi-
ties could result in a material change in fair value.

Interest rate swaps are valued using both observable and 
unobservable inputs, such as quotations received from the 

counterparty, dealers or brokers, whenever available and 
considered reliable. In instances where models are used, 
the value of the interest rate swap depends upon the con-
tractual terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the instru-
ment as well as the availability and reliability of observable 
inputs. Such inputs include market prices for reference 
securities, yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, 
prepayment rates, assumptions for nonperformance risk, 
and correlations of such inputs. The University’s interest 
rate swap arrangements have inputs which can generally 
be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified 
within level 2. 

Fair value of interest rate swaps in the consolidated 
balance sheets:

NOTIONAL 
AMOUNT

2014 
LEVEL 2 FAIR 

VALUE

2013 
LEVEL 2 FAIR 

VALUE

Accounts payable $	 218,695 $	 24,639 $	 28,006

Effect of interest swaps on statements of activities:

2014 
UNREALIZED  
GAIN/(LOSS)

2013 
UNREALIZED  
GAIN/(LOSS)

Non-operating net appreciation/ 
(depreciation)

$	 3,368 $	 10,752

Activity related to interest rate swaps affect unrestricted 
net assets and, in the consolidated statement of cash flows, 
are included in changes in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses in the operating activities section.
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The following tables are rollforwards of the consolidated balance sheet amounts for financial instruments classified by 
the University within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy defined above.

BALANCE  
JUNE 30, 2013

REALIZED 
GAINS/(LOSSES)

UNREALIZED 
GAINS/(LOSSES)

PURCHASES SALES SETTLEMENTS TRANSFERS 
IN/(OUT) OF 

LEVEL 3

BALANCE  
JUNE 30, 2014

Investments:

Debt securities $	 1,990 $	 - $	 223 $	 - $	 - $	 - $	 - $	 2,213

Common, mutual fund, 
and preferred stock 200 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 200

Private equity 341,182 (9,144) 61,733 55,043 	 - (40,199) 	 - 408,615

Hedge funds 297,439 11,968 23,620 93,558 (31,737) (32,024) 	 - 362,824

Real assets and other 309,883 35 (1,049) 35,756 	 - (39,098) 	 - 305,527

Interest in net assets of 
foundations 14,647 88 2,610 6,508 (6,104) 	 - 	 - 17,749

Investments in perpetual 
trusts held by others 	 51,260 	 205 	 6,058 	 559 	 (556) 	 - 	 - 	 57,526

Total fair value $	 1,016,601 $	 3,152 $	 93,195 $	 191,424 $	 (38,397) $	 (111,321) $	 - $	 1,154,654

BALANCE  
JUNE 30, 2012

REALIZED 
GAINS/(LOSSES)

UNREALIZED 
GAINS/(LOSSES)

PURCHASES SALES SETTLEMENTS TRANSFERS 
IN/(OUT) OF 

LEVEL 3

BALANCE  
JUNE 30, 2013

Investments:

Debt securities $	 2,048 $	 1 $	 (23) $	 - $	 (36) $	 - $	 - $	 1,990

Common, mutual fund, 
and preferred stock 200 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 200

Private equity 362,398 	 - (3,377) 36,408 (5,482) (48,765) 	 - 341,182

Hedge funds 285,318 10,428 27,715 5,999 (29,896) (2,125) 	 - 297,439

Real assets and other 315,669 1,332 (9,066) 33,606 	 - (31,658) 	 - 309,883

Interest in net assets of 
foundations 12,330 505 655 3,000 (1,843) 	 - 	 - 14,647

Investments in perpetual 
trusts held by others 	 46,877 	 1,921 	 2,490 	 754 	 (782) 	 - 	 - 	 51,260

Total fair value $	 1,024,840 $	 14,187 $	 18,394 $	 79,767 $	 (38,039) $	 (82,548) $	 - $	 1,016,601

All net realized and unrealized gains/(losses) in the 
tables above are reflected in net appreciation/(depreciation) 
of long-term investment activities in the accompanying 
statement of activities. Net unrealized gains/(losses) relate 
to those financial instruments held by the University at 
June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

The University is permitted under US GAAP to estimate 
the fair value of an investment at the measurement date 
using the reported NAV without further adjustment unless 
the entity expects to sell the investment at a value other than 
NAV or if the NAV is not calculated in accordance with US 
GAAP. The University’s investments in private equity, real es-
tate, and certain hedge funds in the absolute return portfolio 
are recorded at fair value based on the most current NAV.

The University performs additional procedures includ-
ing due diligence reviews on its investments in investment 

companies and other procedures with respect to the capital 
account, or NAV provided, to ensure conformity with US 
GAAP. The University has assessed factors including, but 
not limited to, managers’ compliance with the Fair Value 
Measurement standard, price transparency and valuation 
procedures in place, the ability to redeem at NAV at the 
measurement date, and existence of certain redemption 
restrictions at the measurement date.

The guidance also requires additional disclosures to 
enable users of the financial statements to understand 
the nature and risk of the University’s investments. Fur-
thermore, investments which can be redeemed at NAV 
by the University on the measurement date or within 90 
days are classified as Level 2. Investments which cannot be 
redeemed on the measurement date or within 90 days are 
classified as Level 3.
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STRATEGY 2014 FAIR VALUE UNFUNDED 
COMMITMENTS

REDEMPTION FREQUENCY REDEMPTION 
NOTICE

Hedge funds:

Long/short $	 251,250 $	 - Quarterly, annually, 1 and 3 year rolling lock-ups 45–90 days

Multi-strategy 135,229 	 - Quarterly, annually, 1 and 2 year rolling lock-ups 45–90 days

Private equity: REMAINING FUND LIFE DRAWDOWN PERIOD

Buyouts 232,671 65,632 1 to 10 years 1 to 7 years

Venture capital 153,140 30,078 1 to 12 years 1 to 6 years

Distressed 22,265 8,502 1 to 5 years 1 to 3 years

Real assets:

Real estate 159,286 45,676 1 to 10 years 1 to 5 years

Natural resources 	 107,690 	 70,830 1 to 12 years 1 to 5 years

Total alternative partnerships 1,061,531 220,718

Other Alternative Investments:

Commingled funds of public equities 427,039 	 - Monthly 15–60 days

Commingled funds of fixed income 	 2,307 	 - NA—held to maturity NA

Total other alternative investments 429,346 	 -

Total alternative investments $	 1,490,877 $	 220,718

STRATEGY 2013 FAIR VALUE UNFUNDED 
COMMITMENTS

REDEMPTION FREQUENCY REDEMPTION 
NOTICE

Hedge funds:

Long/short $	 193,376 $	 - Quarterly, annually, 1 and 3 year rolling lock-ups 45–90 days

Multi-strategy 123,913 	 - Quarterly, annually, 1 and 2 year rolling lock-ups 45–90 days

Private equity: REMAINING FUND LIFE DRAWDOWN PERIOD

Buyouts 221,345 62,015 1 to 10 years 1 to 7 years

Venture capital 92,846 25,587 1 to 12 years 1 to 6 years

Distressed 24,937 8,059 1 to 5 years 1 to 3 years

Real assets:

Real estate 185,180 38,352 1 to 10 years 1 to 5 years

Natural resources 	 95,964 	 53,072 1 to 12 years 1 to 5 years

Total alternative partnerships 937,561 187,085

Other Alternative Investments:

Commingled funds of public equities 326,290 	 - Monthly 15–60 days

Commingled funds of fixed income 	 2,054 	 - NA—held to maturity NA

Total other alternative investments 328,344 	 -

Total alternative investments $	 1,265,905 $	 187,085
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(13) Lines of Credit
The University has a $50,000 committed line of credit 
agreement with Northern Trust Company that is subject 
to credit review and renewal. Under this agreement, no 
amounts were outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

The University has a $75,000 committed line of credit 
agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. that is subject 
to credit review and renewal. Under this agreement, no 
amounts were outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

The University has a $50,000 committed line of credit 
agreement with U.S. Bank, N.A. that is subject to credit 
review and renewal. Of this total, $0 and $950 were out-
standing at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The University has $534 in standby letters of credit with 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to cover potential liabilities of 
other financial obligations.

(14) Commitments and Contingencies
In the ordinary course of operations, the University is 
named as a defendant in various lawsuits, or events oc-
cur which could lead to litigation, claims, or assessments. 
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be predicted 
with certainty, management believes that insurance cover-
age is sufficient to cover current or potential claims, or that 
the final outcomes of such matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position.

At June 30, 2014, the University has entered into con-
struction contracts and commitments aggregating $820,431 
($834,324 at June 30, 2013) of which $668,676 ($614,439 at 
June 30, 2013) had been fulfilled.

(15) Leases
The University leases research laboratories, office space, 
and equipment under operating leases expiring through 
August 2024. Rental expense for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013 totaling $38,048 and $36,873, respectively, is 
included in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
activities.

Future minimum payments by year and in the aggre-
gate, under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial or 
remaining terms of one year or more are as follows:

UNIVERSITY RELATED 
ENTITIES

2015 $	 29,421 $	 4,788

2016 26,737 5,179

2017 19,613 3,338

2018 15,941 3,781

2019 10,173 2,109

Thereafter 	 27,183 	 1,477

Total minimum lease payments $	 129,068 $	 20,672

(16) Scholarships, Grants, and Fellowships
The University awarded a total of $177,904 and $162,473 
in scholarships, grants, and fellowships during fiscal years 
2014 and 2013, respectively. In addition, the University 
awarded $27,902 and $25,127, respectively, of scholarships, 
grants, and fellowships as compensation to the recipi-
ents. Of this amount, $12,157 and $12,027, respectively, 
of the total scholarships, grants, and fellowships awarded 
were specifically funded by federal, state, or private gifts 
or grants, or by investment income and gains earned on 
investments held for endowment and similar purposes and 
utilized under the University’s total return spending policy. 

(17) Uncompensated Care
The University’s policy is to treat patients in need of med-
ical services without regard to their ability to pay for such 
services. The University maintains records to identify and 
monitor the level of uncompensated care it provides. These 
records include the amount of charges forgone for ser-
vices and supplies furnished under its charity care policy. 
In addition to charity care, the University also provides 
services at rates significantly below the cost of rendering 
those services. The estimated difference between the cost of 
services provided to Medicaid patients and the reimburse-
ment from NYS for this patient care is also monitored.

Effective January 1, 2007, the New York State Public 
Health Law required all hospitals to implement financial 
aid policies and procedures. The law also required hospitals 
to develop a summary of its financial aid policies and pro-
cedures that must be made publicly available. All standards 
set forth in the law are minimum standards.

In order to qualify for charity care, patients are expected 
to submit financial information demonstrating need. In 
many cases, patients may be unable or unwilling to provide 
that data. In those cases, the uncompensated care is clas-
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sified as bad debt expense unless the University is able to 
obtain information that would indicate the patient appears 
to be eligible for charity care assistance. In those cases, the 
uncompensated care is recorded as charity care.

The estimated costs of providing charity services is 
based on a calculation which applies a ratio of costs to 
charges to the gross uncompensated charges associated 
with providing care to charity patients. The University 
received funding from NYS to help defray some of the costs 
of indigent care in the amount of $19,590 and $13,318 in 
2014 and 2013, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the 
following levels of uncompensated care were provided:

2014 2013

Charity care at cost $	 30,899 $	 27,728  

Excess of cost over reimbursement for  
services provided to Medicaid patients 57,494 55,389

Bad debts expense 	 29,863 	 24,435

$	 87,357 $	 79,824

(18) Functional Expenses
The University also records expenses according to major 
classes of programs or functions. Functional expenses for 
the years ended June 30 consisted of the following:

2014 2013

Instruction $	 321,019 $	 316,697

Research 284,560 302,371

Public service 9,442 8,287

Libraries and other academic support 62,359 62,211

Student services 58,448 55,018

Institutional support 105,462 100,417

Hospital and faculty practice patient care 2,143,206 1,995,611

Auxiliary enterprises 	 96,626 	 93,194

Total functional expenses $	 3,081,122 $	 2,933,806

(19) Subsequent Events
The University has performed an evaluation of subsequent 
events through October 21, 2014, the date which the con-
solidated financial statements were issued.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (dollars in thousands)

44  |  University of Rochester Financial Statements—2013–2014

University of Rochester  
Board of Trustees 2014

Edmund A. Hajim Chairman
Joel Seligman, President
Richard T. Aab
Mark S. Ain
Naomi M. Bergman
Laurence H. Bloch
John H. Bruning
William M. Carpenter
Arunas A. Chesonis
Carol “John” A. Davidson
Launcelot F. Drummond
Bernard T. Ferrari, MD
David Flaum
Barry W. Florescue
Roger B. Friedlander
Ani Gabrellian
Robert B. Goergen Chairman Emeritus
Gwen Meltzer Greene
Paul F. Griner, MD
Richard B. Handler
Alan F. Hilfiker
Carol D. Karp
Robert J. Keegan
John M. Kelly
Laurence Kessler
Evans Y. Lam
Louis G. Lange, MD
Nancy A. Lieberman
Gail A. Lione
Cathy E. Minehan
Nathan F. Moser
Kathleen Ann Murray
Sandra A. Parker
Philip A. Pizzo, MD
Francis L. Price
Ronald Rettner
Thomas S. Richards
Michael S. Rosen
Richard Sands
Thomas R. Sloan
Hugo F. Sonnenschein
Kathy N. Waller
Daniel R. Wegman
Timothy C. Wentworth
Ralph R. Whitney, Jr.
Janice M. Willett
Thomas C. Wilmot
Nathaniel Wisch, MD
G. Robert Witmer, Jr. Chairman Emeritus
James C. Wyant

Senior University Administration 2014

Joel Seligman
President

Peter Lennie
Provost and Robert L. and Mary L. Sproull 
Dean of the Faculty of Arts, Sciences & 
Engineering

Andrew Ainslie
Dean of the William E. Simon School of 
Business

Bradford C. Berk
University Senior Vice President for Health 
Sciences and CEO of University of Rochester 
Medical Center

Jean Bidlack
Co-Chair, Faculty Senate; Paul Stark Professor 
of Pharmacology

Jonathan Binstock
The Mary W. and Donald R. Clark Director of 
the Memorial Art Gallery

Raffaella Borasi
Dean and Frederica Warner Professor of 
the Margaret Warner Graduate School of 
Education and Human Development 

Jonathan Burdick
Vice Provost and Dean of College Admission 

Paul J. Burgett
Vice President, Senior Advisor to the President, 
and University Dean

Robert L. Clark
Senior Vice President for Research and Dean 
of the Edmund A. Hajim School of Engineering 
& Applied Sciences

Gloria Culver
Interim Dean of the School of Arts & Sciences

Stephen Dewhurst
Vice Dean for Research; Associate Vice 
President for Health Sciences Research; Chair, 
Microbiology & Immunology, School of 
Medicine and Dentistry

Eli Eliav
Chair, Department of Dentistry; Director, 
Eastman Institute for Oral Health; Vice Dean 
for Oral Health, University of Rochester 
Medical Center

Thomas J. Farrell
Senior Vice President and James D. Thompson 
Chief Advancement Officer

Richard Feldman
Dean of the College

Steven I. Goldstein
President and CEO, Strong Memorial Hospital 
and Highland Hospital; Vice President, 
University of Rochester Medical Center

Michael Goonan
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, 
University of Rochester Medical Center

Harry Groenevelt
Co-Chair, Faculty Senate; Associate Professor 
of Operations Management

Wendi Heinzelman
Dean of Graduate Studies, Arts, Sciences & 
Engineering

Margaret H. Kearney
Vice Provost and University Dean of Graduate 
Studies

David E. Lewis
Vice President for Information Technology and 
Chief Information Officer

Vivian Lewis
Deputy to the President and Vice Provost for 
Faculty Development and Diversity

Mary Ann Mavrinac
Vice Provost and Andrew H. and Janet Dayton 
Neilly Dean of River Campus Libraries

Raymond J. Mayewski
Vice President, University of Rochester Medical 
Center; Chief Medical Officer, Strong Memorial 
Hospital and Highland Hospital

Robert L. McCrory
Vice President, Vice Provost and Director, 
Laboratory for Laser Energetics, and 
University Professor

Duncan T. Moore
Vice Provost for Entrepreneurship and Rudolf 
and Hilda Kingslake Professor of Optical 
Engineering

Bill Murphy
Vice President for Communications

Charles J. Murphy
Associate Vice President for Human Resources

Lamar Riley Murphy
General Secretary and Chief of Staff

Gail M. Norris
Vice President and General Counsel

Ronald J. Paprocki
Senior Vice President for Administration and 
Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Douglas W. Phillips
Senior Vice President for Institutional 
Resources

Kathy H. Rideout
Dean of the School of Nursing

Peter G. Robinson
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, 
University of Rochester Medical Center; Vice 
President, Government and Community Relations

Jamal J. Rossi
Joan and Martin Messinger Dean of the 
Eastman School of Music

Michael F. Rotondo
CEO, University of Rochester Medical Faculty 
Group; Vice President for Administration, Strong 
Memorial Hospital; Vice Dean for Clinical 
Affairs, School of Medicine and Dentistry

Mark B. Taubman
Dean of the School of Medicine and Dentistry 
and University Senior Vice President for Health 
Sciences

Sasha P. Tulgan
Deputy to the President

Richard Waugh
Associate Vice President for Research and New 
Initiatives

David R. Williams
Dean of Research, Arts, Sciences & 
Engineering and William G. Allyn Professor of 
Medical Optics

Current as of June 30, 2014

University Financial 
Administration
Ronald J. Paprocki

Senior Vice President for Administration and 
Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Salim M. Alani 
Director, Office of University Audit

Holly G. Crawford 
Associate Vice President for Budgets and 
Planning and Deputy to Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer

Kathy A. King-Griswold 
Treasury Manager and Assistant Treasurer

Karen M. Sodoma 
Assistant Controller

Douglas W. Wylie 
Associate Vice President for Financial 
Operations and University Controller

Medical Center Financial 
Administration
Michael C. Goonan

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of 
University of Rochester Medical Center

Adam P. Anolik
Associate Vice President and Senior Director 
for Finance and Chief Financial Officer for 
Strong Memorial and Highland Hospitals



F. F. Thompson Health  
System, Inc.

Subsidiaries:

•	 F. F. T. Senior Communities, Inc.

•	 F. F. T. H. Properties and Services, Inc.

•	 H. H. Ewing Continuing Care Center

•	 The Frederick Ferris Thompson Hospital

•	 The F. F. Thompson Foundation, Inc.

Eastman Dental Center
Foundation, Inc.

Accountable Health  
Partners, LLC

High Tech Rochester, Inc.

UR Equity Holdings, Inc.

UR Real Estate Corporation

Crittenden Boulevard 
Housing Company, Inc.

Excell Partners, Inc.

Rochester BioVenture
Center, Inc.

Subsidiary:

•	 Excell Technology Ventures, Inc.

Strong Partners Health
System, Inc.

The Highlands Living 
Center, Inc.

(dba Meadowbrook Adult
Daycare at the Highlands)

Highland Community 
Development Corporation
(dba Highlands at Pittsford 

and Laurelwood at the 
Highlands)

The Meadows at Westfall, 
Inc.

(dba The Highlands at 
Brighton)

Highland Hospital of
Rochester

Subsidiaries:

•	 The Highland Foundation, Inc.

•	 Highland Facilities Development 
Corporation

•	 Medical Administrative Associates, 
Inc. (dba Highland Apothecary)

University of Rochester and Related Entities (Consolidated)

Strong Home Care Group

Subsidiaries:

•	 Visiting Nurse Service of Rochester  
and Monroe County, Inc.

•	 Community Care of Rochester

•	 Finger Lakes Visiting Nurse Service, Inc.

•	 Finger Lakes Home Care, Inc.

University of Rochester

Includes:

•	 Arts, Sciences & Engineering 
(School of Arts and Sciences and  
Edmund A. Hajim School of Engineering 
and Applied Sciences)

•	 Margaret Warner Graduate School of  
Education and Human Development

•	 William E. Simon School of Business

•	 Eastman School of Music

•	 Memorial Art Gallery

•	 School of Medicine & Dentistry

•	 Strong Memorial Hospital  

•	 School of Nursing

•	 Eastman Institute for Oral Health

•	 Health Sciences

•	 University of Rochester Medical 
Faculty Group (URMFG)

•	 UR Investment, LLC

•	 Spruce Risk Purchasing Group, LLC

as of June 30, 2014


